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Hornby PLC

The Groups principal business is the development,
F)roducﬂon and supply of toy and hobby products
or a global market, through a series ofrwerifoge
brands. The Group distributes its products through
~a network of hobby specialists, multiple refailers
and its own website in the UK and overseas.
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Highlights 2018

“In the first seven months that | have been at Hornby, we have assessed our position

and confronted the reality of the situation in which we find ourselves. Tough
decisions have now been taken and we are currently laying down the foundations
for our future success. There is a new energy in the business and | am excited

with our plans as we re-engage across both domestic and international markets
with these well-loved brands.”

Lyndon Davies, Chief Executive

Revenue
(2017: £47.4m)

£35.7m

Operating loss
(2017: £(9.2)m loss)

£99m

Reported loss before taxation
(2017: £(9.5)m loss)

£(10.1)m

(2017: £(6.3)m loss)

£(7.6)m

Reported loss after taxation
(2017: £(9.7)m loss)

£99)m

Reported loss per share
(2017: (12.65)p loss)

(10.13)p

Underlying basic loss per share

(2017: (9.26}p basic loss)

(8.05)p

Net cash
(2017: £1.5m)

£39m

i Underlying figures are before omortisotion of intcngibles (brond names and customer lists), net unreclised foreign
exchange movements on intercompany loans, goodwill impairments and exceptional items.
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Executive Chairman’s Report

The Strategic Report comprises the Executive
Chairman’s Report, the Operating and Financial
Review of the Year and Our Key Performance
Indicators ('KPIs’).

As | wrile this message o you | hove been
a Hornby employee for seven months, but |
have both worked for and adjocent to the
brands you own for 40 years. | started on
the production line af the old Corgi factory
in Wales when | was 16 and have been in
the industry ever since.

I do not wish to dwell on the mistakes of the
r)osl, but please do not think | take them
ightly. | have drawn on all my experience in
assessing Hornby's current position and
formulating my views on the future direction.
| have a great deal of passion for these
iconic brands and it has pained me lo see
them fall flom grace. You, as shareholders,
have had to bear the brunt of it, and so | do
not feel the need to reopen those wounds
you know so well.

My team and | are fully committed to
developing a sustainable business that builds
on our heritage. My job is to look forward
and deliver the results for you. This repori is
an oEportuniry for me to give you an honest
and humble account of our progress. We -
need o return this Group to prolilability and
! need o explain how we intend 1o do it.

The first step is understanding. The next step
is fixing the basic issues once they are
understood. The final step is to get us back
to profitability with a logical and measured
strategy that does not imperil the balance
sheet. In doing these things we will build
long-term shareholder value in @ susiainable
way. Some of our brands have lasted for
more than 100 years ond it is my view that
they should thrive for at least 100 more.

The business model

What we do is simple, but not easy. We
have an office in Sandwich where most of
our hard-working staff come to work every
day. We also have a logisiics hub
approximately ten miles away in Hersden
which most o}/our product will pass through
on the way to both refailers and sometimes
direcily to customers via our own website.
Before Sandwich and Hersden, we had all
our operations (including manufacturing
many yeors ago) in Morgole, but we hove
now sold this building and refain only the
Hornby Visitor Centre where we showcase
the wonderful heritoge of our bronds.
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Over the years we have acquired a diverse

ortfolio of markeHeading international
gronds. These brands are supported by
similarly hard-working stoff at offices in lily,
France, Spain and Germany. Further ofielc?,/
we have o warehouse and office in
Washington, USA.

We aspire to design high-quality models
ond accessories for the toy and hobby
markets which are not necessarily low
priced but provide great value for money.
Most of the research and development for
our product occurs in the UK, but the
manufacturing is predominantly executed in
China and India, in conjunction with the
engineers and support staff at our satellite
office in Hong Kong.

The design and delivery cycles of our
products are quite long, sometimes up to
two or three years between inception and
delivery to the UK. Our cusiomers tend to
be quite particular about what they want
and so it takes fime to make sure that they
will be acceptable to them.

The chdllenge is then to make sure we
market our products in such @ way as o
make them desirable. It is also important lo
choose the correct relfail pariners and
communication channels that help us
cultivate a loyal following of colleciors and
fans from all age ranges.

Knowing the right products to produce and
how many of each product to order requires
an in-depth knowledge of the individua
brands, the history, the competitive
landscape and the various customer bases.
We have fo order all the products up front
and wait for them to arrive to truly see how
they sell through. We must take risks in this
process and there is an element of
uncertainty. Managing the cosh flows

through this cycle of invesiment is an
extremely important part of the process of
prolecting ond enhancing shareholder value.

If we order too much of an item that nobody
wants, we lie cash up in inventory which
means we don't have the cash available

to deploy into new and exciling models for
the following year. If we order too litile,

then we don't moximise the profitability

ond therefore shareholder value. It requires
great coordination and deep expertise
across engineering, development, mcrketing
and scles to make sure this engine ticks
over smoothly.

This challenge is made even more difficult
by the seasonal element to our business.
We are lucky enough to have customers
that see our producis as worthy of a gift to
a friend or family member over the
Christmas period. The final three monihs of
the calendar year tend to be very busy for
us from a sales perspective and so we have
to coordinate the invesiment in inventory so
that it can satisfy this peak in demand.

This cycle of development, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution is our business
engine. We have some wonderful tolent in
the Group but the engine as a whole doesn't
erform optimally. Based on my in-depth
nowledge of this industry and following an
initial review, many frips fo trade shows,
retailers, suppliers, manufacturers and other
important partners all over the world, | have
now developed the understanding and have
token the first steps towards fixing the engine.

The strategy

Over the last few years our competitors
have gained strength in the marketploce.
They are stronger and smarter than ever,
and we must give ourselves every
opportunity to compete successfully with

them. In this situalion, it is important thot our

compelitors {who | am more than aware

read our reports in detail) are not able to
pick out, copy ond better the moves we
make to delight our customers. As a result,

[ will look to discuss some of the steps we
have already token 1o fix the engine here,
instead of plotting out the batile plon for our
competition to follow.
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Executive Chairman’s Report continued

1. Discounting

From the description of the business model
above, hopefully you can see how o
business like ours can run into cash How
problems. If we have debt repayments to
make and we order too much siock, then
the cash that is tied up in the slow-selling
stock can create a liquidity problem. This
can sometimes force us to hastily liquidate
stock at @ discount to pay the bills.

Discounting is o very difficult thing to do
without materially affecting the perception of
a brond or product. Many brand owners,
not just in the loy and hobby sector, have
fallen victim to choosing discounting to pay
bills or to chase arbitrary sales targets,
instead of thinking more about the longer
term impact on the brand.

Lef us take the collector segment of our
customers as an example to illustrate this. If
a collector eagerly owaits the launch of the
latest locomotive and snaps it up at full
price on release day, the likely reason he or
she will do this is because they anficipate it
will be a desirable item to have, will sell out
and will become a store of value over the
long term as collectors fight over the few
hundred that remain in circulation. If this
collector then sees the ilem on sale for half
price o few months ofter release, not only
do they become disillusioned because the
scorcity value and desirability seems to not
be there, but also, they probably won't buy
other products from that brand at the time of
release again and will just wait for the
inevitable discounts. If you keep following
this discounting strategy, you will become
more and more reliant on lower and lower
prices after every round. You end up never
selling anything ot the prices you assumed
when you made tooling investment and the

economics of the business are impaired
because the trust is gone in the brand.
If you destroy the trust in the brand and
collectors no longer see the products
os a store of value, they will switch to @
collectible that does safisfy their desire.

The discounting hos also impacted the trust
our refailers have in us too. If you take our
independent relailers who generally do @
great job of cultivating the ﬁobby on our
behalf, these are small businesses who have
to choose their stock carefully because they
have limited balance sheets to fund it. If we
sell them a box of Airfix Sea Harriers at full
wholesale price and then sell them at half
Erice on a website, these retailers will not

e able to compete on price without taking
o loss on the item. The best they can do is
sit on the stock until we have sold out. It
makes life very difficult for them and it
certainly makes them think about wanting
to buy items ot full price from us. It has
pushed some of them to buy from
competitors instead.

In both anecdotes, the sales figure the
Group would report to you would be higher
than otherwise, Eut the value of the brands
over the long term would hove reduced.
Discouniing is o strategy that wins sales in
the short term, but history would suggest that
the extra soles today does not compensate
for the long-term loss of trust in the brands.

The first thing we have done is remove the
discounting, which has had the effect of
initially reducing sales. The sirategy has
been welcomed by our retail partners and
customers, but this is just the beginning. We
ore only at the start of the long process of
rebuilding trust.

In order io do this, we needed to remove
the financia! staifjackel. We have worked
with our lenders and shareholders over the
last six months to resiructure the balance
sheet and have starled the new financiol

ear with a structure that will allow us to

old the line. We will be able to sell our
carefully curated and desirable models/
accessories at the price that oplimises the
brand values over the long term ond
cultivates irust with our customers and
refail partners.

2. Supply chain

We are working to improve the infrastructure
in our overseas supply chain to make it
function more efficiently. We must guarantee
that we get the right amount of product to
the market at the right time and at the right
cost. When this works efficiently we wil?
greatly improve our sales performance.

We have a lack of new product arriving in
the UK and therefore can't meet the
demand. This is because of two main
reasons:

— Order quantities were very low per item
because of cash constraints and a lack of
understanding about which designs would
sell better than others.

— Not only were orders placed late, but the
vitally importont technical specifications
were also supplied late to our
maonufacturers.

Manufacturers are like sharks — they survive
and thrive by moving at pace. We must
keep them busy. If we don', they will look
elsewhere for orders, which is what they
did, further delaying production of our
products.

After the delays in submitting orders and
specificolions last year, the situation was
similar to frying to Look atable ot o
restaurant ot the las minute. As you might
expect, most of the reslaurants were
unovailable, so we desperately rang around
and booked the best available table we
could find.

We then arrived late with less people in the
party than we'd promised, we didn't order
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all of the meals, forgot o tell the kitchen
how we wanted our.steaks cooked,
changed our mind on the side dishes and
then complained when we found the
restourant was closing and there was no
time for a dessert.

The solution here is to pull forward the
planning deadlines by six months and
choose the right manutacturing partners for
the long run. Considering the complexity of
our design ond ordering cycles it will take
time, but the aim is for the new schedule to
be fully operational and firing on all
cylinders for the financial year ending

31 March 2020.

3. Knowledge and experience

The skills required to produce the correct
producis in the right quantities needs
decades of knowledge and experience of
what the business has done before, what
competitors have done before, what has
worked, what hasn't worked ond the
understanding of why in all these scenarios.

We don't sell toothpaste. Our customers
don't return once every couple of weeks for
a new tube without thinking about it. It is
difficult to generalise because the customer
base for each brond is unique, but on the
whole we hove disceming customers who
require onIY very specific models for their
layouts, collections, gifts or playrooms. If
product sells well in a particulor year, it

. doesn't necessarily mean the same one will
sell well the next year. We are on a constant
treadmill of innovation and this needs highly
specialised and in-depth knowledge ond
experience for each of the brands.

Initially, 1 brought Simon Kohler and Tim
Mulhalt with me to help manage this
turnaround. Simon clone spent 35 years
with the Group during Hornby's most
profitable years, before parting ways under
o previous regime. Tim has a wealth of
experience in this industry, bringing in
knowledge of the international markets. All
three of us together have over 100 years of
directly applicable experience. This was a
good start, but | reclised we needed more.
In 2018, we will take on more people who
combined will add ancther 100 years of
experience. These roles span all the mojor
functions including sales, marketing,
purchasing ond operations.

This concerted effort o fill the Group with
people who have decodes of directly
applicable experience 1o our rather esoteric
markets is not limited to outside hires [or
re-hires). Allowing the right infernal talent to
rise up and giving them a voice has started
to yield great results too. Several exisiing
employees with years of experience hove
been retuned o their positions that they
held during our most successful years.

We are assembling o team of experts who
understond the customers and the markets in
which each of the brands operate. We also
have many stars moving through the ranks
who now feel empowered to get on with
rebuilding these brands and learn from

the more experienced members. It's still

only day one ond we are rebuilding the
foundations, but the early impact on morale
and motivation is encouraging.

4. Costs

As | mentioned above, we have good
visibility into the costs that we will need to
incur fo operate throughout the yeor. The
challenge is to make enough gross profit to
cover our operating costs and have some
net profit left over for shareholders and/or
future investment. In the simplest terms; there
are two levers we can pull. We can sell
more, and we can reduce our cosls.

As it currently stands, we need to sell more
ﬁroduct if we are to cover our costs. We
ave reset the business to a more

. sustainable level of sales without

discounting. This has been painful in the
short term from a profitability perspective;
however, it is the right thing to do to ensure
the business has a ?uiure. We aim to rebuild
sales as the frust retumns to our brands, but
we are also working tirelessly to do more
while spending less.

In the last announcement, we fold you of the
ongoing operational expenditure we had
saved. We hove found odditional savings
since the January update, and these savings
are being found while improving service
levels and product delivery schedules.

We are instilling a culture of frugality which
means we are doing more with less.

This will be a key part of getting us back

to profitability.

Outlook

As | soid above, we don't want 1o give oo
much oway to our competitors, but | can tell
you that the changes 1o the strategy ond the
way we deal with our customers, suppliers,
retailers and manufacturing partners hos
already yielded many opportunities to save
cost, sell more and increase gross margins.

Dominant national retailers who were only
a distant memory to the business have
Erooctively re-engaged now the discounting

os slopped. Licensors of important
trademaiks are engaging with us again
and wanting to brooden ranges and
Eortnerships. Previously lost talent is coming

ack to the Group and morale is starling to
improve in our staff who will be the real
champions of this turnaround.

Whilst there are green shools starting to
appear for the future, at the time of writing
this, we have only been in ploce for seven
months. The long design cycles mean that
we have a largely inherited line plon for
products being delivered this year.
Nonetheless, we are ot work doing the best
with what we have os we seek to return the
Group to profitability.

On behalf of the Board

LNy

Lyndon'Duvies
18 June 2018
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Operating and Financial Review of the Year

Financial review

2018 2017
Revenue “£357m  £474m
Gross profit £13.8m  £182m
Gross profit margin 39% 38%
Overheads £21.3m  £24.0m
Exceptionals £2.3m £3.3m
Reported loss before tox £000.0)m  £@.5m
Underlying loss before tax! £(7.6lm  £(6.3)m
Reported loss after tax £99m  £9.7)m
Basic loss per share (1013lp  (12.65)p
Underlying basic loss per share! (8.05)p (9.26)p
Net cash £39m £1.5m
Undrown facilifies £6.0m £77m

| Stoted before amoriisorion of iniangibles {brends and customer lists), net unrealised foreign exchange mevements

on iniercompeny loans, goodwill impairments ond exceprional items.

Performance on a statutory basis
Consolidated revenue for the year ended
31 March 2018 was £35.7 million, a
decrease of 25% compared fo the previous
year's £47.4 million os the previous
management team’s strategy of reducing
stock lines and closing European operations
took full effect. This strategy was reviewed
in October 2017 and moves are underway
fo reverse these previous decisions. Gross
profit margin was slightly higher, ot 39%
{2017 38%) due to cessation of stock
discounting post October 2017.

Overheads reduced year-on-year by 11%
from £24.0 million to £21.3 million os a
result of measures taken post October 2017
when the senior management and the
Boord were restructured. UK distribution
costs reduced due to the smaller volume of
products being handled through Hersden
due fo reduction in sales volume. Scles and
marketing costs reduced by £2.6 million
yearon-year due fo the iransfer of all
trading from Europeon subsidiaries to

the UK, enabling the reduction of scles

and marketing spend in each continental
European location. The exit from
concessions reduced concession
commissions. Administration costs were
£0.3 million higher, largely due to increased
depreciation on the wiiting down of B2B
and B2C website invesiments os we create
websiles more suited 1o our customers’
needs. Other operating expenses in the
yeor of £0.4 million (2017: £0.4 million
income) include foreign exchange costs and
the amortisation of certain inlangible assefs
(brand names and cusiomer lists).

Exceptional costs totalling £2.3 million
(2017 £3.3 million] include £1.8 million
relating to the restructuring of the UK
business and Board changes, £0.4 million
costs associated with the EGM
[‘Extraordinary General Meeling’) and
mandatory offer and cosls relating o the
2017 equity issue and bank refinancing
(£0.1 million).
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Performance on an underlying basis

The underlying loss before taxation is shown fo present a clearer view of the trading
performance of the business. Management ideniified the following non-trivial items, whose
inclusion in performance distorts underlying trading performance: net foreign exchange
(gains)/losses on intercompany loans which are dependent on exchange rate fluctuations
and can be volatile, and the omoartisation of intangibles which result from historical

ocguisirions. Additionally, exceptional items including restructuring costs are one-off items

ond therefore have also been added back in calculating underlying loss before taxation.
Group
2018 2017
£000 £1000
Statutory loss before taxation {10,066}  {9,509)
Net foreign exchange impact on intercompany loans (114) {410)
Amortisation of intangibles — brands and customer lists 314 344
Exceptional items:
Restructuring cosls 1,823 3,889
EGM and mandatory offer 399 -
Refinancing costs 70 944
Profit on disposal of property - {1,530y
Underlying loss before taxation (7,574) (6,272

The underlying loss before taxation above
was £76 million (2017: loss of
£6.3 million).

The bosic loss per share caleuloted on
underlying loss before taxation [hereafter
referred to as underlying basic loss per
share} was {8.05)p (2017: (9.26)p).

The income tax credit for the year is
£0.2 million (2017: £0.2 million charge).

Reported pre-iax loss wos £10.1 million
(2017: loss of £9.5 million) and reported
basic loss per share was (10.13)p (2017
(12.65)p loss per share).

Segmental analysis

Third-party sales by the UK business of
£28.5 mirlion fell by 24% in the year as @
result of reduced invesiment in tooling and
uncerlainty in the customer base regarding
discounting. The loss before toxation of

£9.0 million compared to £11.8 million loss

last Leor reflects the continued reduction in
overheads during the latter part of the year.

Sales by the European businesses of

£4.7 million fell by 24% in the yeor,

reflecting the yeor's reduced product range

and previous lack of investment in new
roduct for the European market. The loss

Eefore tax was £0.6 million.

Sales in the US business of £2.5 million
reduced by 30% on translation and by 20%
on a constant currency basis. The trading
loss of £0.5 million in the US wos a result of
lack of invesiment ot Group level in product
suitable for the US market.

Statement of financial position

Property, plant and equipment decreased
yearon-vear to £4.5 million from

£5.7 million as depreciation of £2.8 million
outweighed capital additions of

£1.6 million. Group invenlories increased
slightly during the year due to the cessation
of discounting as part of the New Business
Plan from £9.7 million to £10.0 million.
Trade and other receivables reduced by
36% due to reduced sales and improved
sales ledger management. Trade and other
payables reduced by £2.4 million largely
due 1o the reduced size of the business.
The net effect of these factors was a
reduction in working capital of £1.0 million
la reduction of 38%). Overall investment in
new tooling, new intangible computer
software and other capital expenditure was
£1.8 million (2017: £2.0 million).

Dividend

The Group hos begun its New Business
Plan under the new management teom led
by lyndon Davies and so the decision has
again been taken not lo pay a dividend
(2017: £nill. The Board continues o keep
the dividend policy under review.
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Operating and Financial Review of the Year

continued

Finoncing and capital structure

A Placing and Open Offer of 40,677,968
new ordinory shores of o price of 29.5
pence each, raising £11.5 million net of
costs, was completed on 7 December 2017
with the funds being used to allow the
business to pay down debt at that point in
time of £7.4 million, acquire 49% of LCD
Enterprises Limited for £1.6 million ond invest
in the New Business Plan.

Borrowings in the year ended 31 March
2018 peaked towards the end of 2017
under the previous Barclays Bank facility at
£7.4 million. Since December 2017, the
Company has operated without needing to
utilise its new Barclays Bank facility, which
hos o limit of £6 million.

Net cosh at 31 March 2018 was £3.9
million compared to net cash of £1.5 million
ot 31 March 2017, giving undrown facilities
and availoble cash of £99 million at

31 March 2018.

Post the year end, the Group has moved its
financing requirements away from Borcloys.
On 5 June 2018 the Group entered an
Assel Based lending ['ABL) facility of up to
£12.0 million with PNC Credit Limited
through to June 2023. The PNC covenanis
are customary operational and financial
covenants applied on a monthly basis. In
addition, the Group enfered a committed
£6.0 million loan facility with The Phoenix
UK Fund (the Group's lorgest shareholder)

if it should be required, which is a three-
year rolling facility.
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Our Key Performance Indicators ('KPls’)

Our Key Performance Indicators (‘KPIs’)
The Directors are of the opinion that the
financial KPls are revenues, gross margins,
underlying (loss)/profit before tax and loss)/
earnings per share, the information for which
is available in these financial statements and
summarised in the financial highlights section
earlier in this report. The Board monitors
progress against plan on a regular basis,

Principal risks and uncertainties

adjusting future objectives annually in line
with current circumstances.

Identification of principal risks and
uncertainties

The Boord has the primary responsibility for
identifying the major risks focing the Group
ond deve?oping appropriate policies fo
manage those risks. The Board completes

Description

Market
conditions

The Group has competition in the
model railway, slot racing, model
kits, die-cast and paint markes.
Failure to recruit new customers,

Impact/sensitivity

The Group performance is
impacted by the octions of
competitors and changes

in the wider refail landscape.

loss of market share to increased
competitor activity or aliernative
hobbies would hove a negative
impact on the Group's results. Failure
fo evolve and innovate products
may lead 1o brands becoming less

relevant in the marketplace.

an annual risk assessmenl programme in
order to identify the major risks and hos
reviewed ond delermined any mitigoting
actions required as set out below. The risk
assessment has been completed in the
coniext of the overall strategic objectives
and the New Business Plan of the Group.

Mitigation/comment

In many of our markets the Group still enjoys
a strong market position due lo the continved
development of our brands. We will sirive

to further improve the strength of our brands.
Production of high-quality products which
cuslomers want is o key miligating foclor.

The New

Business Plan
the Group 1o posilive cash
generation in 2020-21.

The New Business Plan may not
fully achieve the aims of refurning

The increase in business scale

and reduction of costs and the
re-conversion of concession

sales currently anticipated is not
achieved and the Group does not
achieve sustainable profit and cash
generation.

The Group has developed clear targels and
hos cost-saving contingencies in the plan
being actioned to put the necessary resources
in place to deliver the aims of the plan.

Hobby market  Overdll decline in the hobby

market could lead to greater levels
of competition in the medium term,
which could have a negative
impact on the Group's results.

Falling interest in traditional
hobbies may impact our core
independent and national retailers
and have o consequent impact
upon the Group's performance.

In many of our markets the Group enjoys a
strong market position due to the continued
development of our brands. Brands are
extremely important in the model sector,
with mor{er eniry costs being prohibitive.
In the short term there is an opportunily to
regain market share lost through previous
underperformance.

Exchange rates

rate fluctuations.

The Group purchases goods in
US Dollars and sells in Pounds
Sterling, Euros and US Dollars and
is therefore exposed to exchonge

Significant fluctuations in exchange
rotes to which the Group is
exposed could have a material
adverse effect on the Group's future
results. In particular, the negative
impact on Sterling of Brexit and the
continuing unceriainties will make
the US Dollar purchose of its goods
more expensive.

The Group confinues to hedge shortterm
exposures by establishing forward currency
Furchoses using fixed rate and porticipating
orward contracts up to twelve months ahead.
It is deemed impractical lo hedge exchange
rafe movemenis beyond that period.
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Our Key Performance Indicators ('KPIs’) continued

Supply chain

Description

The Group's products are
manufaciured by specidlist labour
in China ond India.

Impqct/sensiﬁvity ...........................
The Group does not have

exclusive arrangements with its
suppliers and there is a risk that
competition for manufacturing
capocity could lead to delays

in introducing new products or
servicing exisfing demand.

Mitigation/comment

The Group is continuing to develop and
review its vendor portfolio. A 26-step critical
path analysis tool has been developed to
monitor the whole manufocturing process in
order o idenlify ond deal with issues as they
arise. The Group has its own facilifies in China
where iis tooling is secured and managed.

Capital
allocation

New tooling is important to support
the production of new products.

The risk is that, the Group has
insufficient capital to fund new
fooling or invests ineffectively
in the wrong producis.

The New Business Plan includes significant
capital expenditure to fund suitable products
to underpin the implementation of the New
Business Plon strategy of the Group. This
process will be underpinned by o robust
capital allocation process aligned fo brand
strategies and brand delivery targets.

Product
compliance

The Group's products are subject
to compliance with toy safety
legislation around the world.

Failure to comply could lead to @
product recall, resulting in damage
to Company ond brand reputation
along with an adverse impact on
the Group's results.

Robust internal processes and procedures,
active monitoring of proposed legislation and -
involvement in policy debate and lobbying

of the relevant authorities.

Insufficient financing to meet the
needs of the business.

Without the appropriate level of
financing it would be increasingly
difficult to execute the Group's
business plans.

The Group hos a £12.0 million ABL facility
ond a £6.0 million revolving loan facility with
Phoenix Assel Management Pariners. The
Group's policy on liquidity risk is to mainiain
adequate facilities to meet the future needs
of the business.

System and
cyber risk

The Group continues fo invest in
the development of its website
and implemented o new ERP
system in 2015.

This exposes the business o greater
risk of financial loss, disruption or
damage to the reputation of an
organisation from g failure of its
information technology systems.

The Group has invested significant fime and
cost in the new website and ERP system in the
last three years. The Group has dedicated
web and ERP teams to monitor and maintain
the Group's systems and holds appropriate
insurance policies to minimise material risk.

Recruitment, development and
retention of tolented people are the
key to the success of any business.

The Group fails io retain the
necessary skills and talent to
deliver the Group's plans.

New management team to encourage and
empower employees. Key lost talent has
been re-acquired and brought back into the
Company.

Main control procedures

Management eslablishes control policies and
procedures in response to each of the key
risks identified. Control
to ensure the integrity o
statements and are designed lo meet the
Group's requirements and both financial
and operational risks identified in each
area of the business. Conirol procedures
are documented where appropriate and

Frocedures operate
the Group’s financial

reviewed by manaogement and the
Board on an ongoing basis to ensure
control weaknesses are mitigated.

The Group operates a comprehensive
onnual planning and budgeting system.
The onnual plans and budgels are
approved by the Board. The Board
reviews the management accounts at ifs
monthly meetings and financial forecasts

are updated monthly and quarterly.
Performance against budget is monitored
and where any significant deviations are
identified appropriate action is taken.

Kirstie Gould
Chief Finance Officer
18 June 2018
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report together with the audited
consolidated and Company financial statements for the yeor ended
31 March 2018.

The Group's business review along with future developmenis and the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are included in the
Strategic Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding company, limited by shares, registered
{ond domiciled) in Englond Reg. No. 01547390 with a Sponish
branch and has six operating subsidiaries: Hormby Hobbies Limited
in the United Kingdom with @ branch in Hong Kong, Hornby
America Inc. in the US, Hornby Espafia S.A. in Spain, Hornby lialia
s.c.d in lioly, Hornby France S.A.S in France and Hornby Deutschland
GmbH in Germany. Hornby PLC is a public limited company which
is listed on the Alternative Investment Market {‘AIM’),and
incorporated and operating in the United Kingdom.

The Group is principally engaged in the development, design,
sourcing and distribution of%o%by and interactive products.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the
Group Stotement of Comprehensive Income. Revenue for the yeor
was £35.7 million compared to £47.4 million last year. The loss for
the year attributable to equity holders amounted to £9.9 million
(2017: £9.7 million loss). The position of the Group and Company is
sef out in the Group and Company Statements of Financial Position.
Future developments are set out within the Executive Chairman’s Report.

No interim dividend was declared in the year (2017: £nil) and the
Directors do not recommend a final dividend (2017: £nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 June 2018, the Group entered into a £12.0 million Asset
Based Llending agreement with PNC Credit Limited for five years
ending June 2023. In addition, Phoenix Asset Management Partners
Limiteg, the majority shareholder, has provided an additional

£6.0 million of loan 1o further fund the tumaround as part of the
New Business Plan. Further delails are given in Note 30.

GOING CONCERN

On 5 June 2018, the Group entered into o £12.0 million Asset
Based Llending (ABL') facility with PNC Credit Limited through to June
2023. The PNC covenonts are customary operational and financial
covenants applied on a monthly basis. In addition, the Group
entered a commitied £6.0 million loan facility with Phoenix Asset
Management Pariners Limited (the Group's largest shareholder) if it
should be required, which is a three-year rolling facility.

The Group has prepared trading and cash flow forecasts for a
period of three years, which have been reviewed and approved by
the Board. On the basis of these forecasts, the facilities with PNC
Credit Limited and Phoenix, and after o delailed review of trading,
financial posifion and cosh flow models, the Directors have a

reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For these reasons, they continue lo adopt the going concern
basis accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Board considers that research and development into products
continues to play an imporiani role in the Group's success. R&D
costs of £1.0 million [see note 4) incurred in the year have been
charged to the Stalement of Comprehensive Income as these costs
of cl?relote to research costs.

DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS

During 2017 there was much change of the Group. The initial
catalyst was an approach by the second-largest sﬁoreholder, ROY
Nominees Limited, to call a general meefing for the purposes of
considering ordinary resolutions to remove Roger Canham from
office as o Director of the Company and to appoint a ROY
Nominees representative as a Director.

Irevocable commiiments were received from more than 50% of
shareholders to vote against the resolution, and so the meeting was
adjourned, ond Roger Canham remained as o Director.

Following the publication of the Group's final resulis in june 2017,

it was announced that the funds controlled by Phoenix Asset
Management Partners (' The Concert Party’) had acquired a further
20% of the shares outstanding from ROY Nominees Limited. The City
Code on Takeovers and Mergers rules required The Concert Party
to submit a formal bid for the rest of the shares ouistanding, and as
a member of the Phoenix Concert Party, Roger Canham decided

to step down from the Board.

The Hornby Board considered the offer and deemed it to
undervalue the prospects of the Group. The Boord recommended
that shareholders reject the offer.

In July, the offer closed and the final level of acceptances elevated
the Phoenix stake to 71.5% of the shares outstanding. Shortly after
the offer closed, the Board appointed Jomes Wilson, a partrer af
Phoenix Asset Management Partners, as o Non-Executive Director.

In September, it was mutually agreed that Steve Cooke would step
down as CEO. Shortly after this it was announced that lyndon
Davies, o highly experienced model and hobby professional, would
join the Group as CEO. lyndon also brought with him Simon Kohler
and Tim Muthall as operational consuliants. Simon Kohler is o

highly respected industry veteran in the model and hobby industry,
having spent 35 years with Homby, and Tim Mulhall speciclises in
building routes io market and strategic soles development. Lyndon,
Simon and Tim combined have over 100 years of experience

in the indusiry.

In the interim results announcement in November, the Board
outlined o disappointing performance in the first half, a new straiegy
to maximise the value of the brands and a capital raise to
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oddress both the underperformance and provide funds for
odditional investment.

The Board also announced the acquisition of o 49% stake in LCD
Enterprises, the porent company of the Oxford Diecast model and
hobby brand. lyndon Davies, the current Group CEO, is the ultimate
owner of LCD Enterprises.

The Placing and Open Offer announced with the inferim resufts was
concluded and the Phoenix stake increased to 74.66% of the shares
outstanding of the Group.

Towards the end of the year, there were further Board changes. On
31 December, David Adams (Interim Chairman) and David Mulligan
(CFO) stepped down.

Kirstie Gould replaced David Mulligan as CFO. Kirstie has spent
over two years with Homby and has stepped up from her previous
role as a consultant in the finance department. Kirstie quoliﬁed aso
chartered accountant with PricewoierﬁouseCoopers LLP in 1997 and
since then has held senior management and directorship roles
across a number of high-growth SME firms.

John Stansfield also joined the Board as a Non-Executive Director.
John is a qualified accountant and previously spent 31 years with
the Group, compleling twelve years as Group Finance Director.

lyndon Davies, the CEO of the Group, became Interim Execulive
Chairman and CEO until the search for an Independent Non-
Executive Chairman is completed.

The poteniial conflict with lyndon Davies being CEO (and Inferim
Chairman) of Horby PLC and mojority shareholder of LCD Limited is
mitigated by the fact that the Boord is comprised of four other
Directors and the Company is ultimately controlled by the major
shareholder, Phoenix Asset Management Pariners Limited. The Board
infends to inroduce a list of maiters which require consideration of
the Board 1o ensure conflicts of interest, if any, can be managed.

The Directors who served during the year up to the date of signing
the financial statements were:

L Dovies [Appointed 5 October 2017)

K Gould [Appointed 4 Jonuary 2018)

] Wilson [Appointed 1 August 2017)

) Stansfield (Appointed 4 Jonuary 2018)

S Cooke [Resigned 3 October 2017)

D Mulligan (Resigned 31 December 2017)
M George (Appointed 22 December 2016)
R Canham (Resigned 21 June 2017)

D Adams (Resigned 31 December 2017)

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company mointained liability insurance for its Directors and
officers during the financial year and up to the date of approval of
the Annual Report and Accounts. The Company has alse provided

an indemnity for its Directors and the Company Secretary, which is
a qualifying third party indemnity provision for the purposes of the
Companies Act 2006.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

The Company has been notified that of close of business on 12 June
2018 the following parties were interested in 3% or more of the
Compony's ordinary share capital.

Number of Percentoge
Shareholder ordinaty shores held
Phoenix Asset Monagement 03,524,498 74.66
Artemis Fund Managers Limited 18,242,460 14.56

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Direclors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
ond the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulation.

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financial statements
for each financial yeor. Under that law the Directors have prepared
the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with
International Financiol Reporting Standards ('IFRSs') as adopted by
the European Union. Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a frue ond fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for
that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
required fo:

¢ select suitable occounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

e siate whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union have been followed, subject lo any material departures
disclosed and explained in the Linonciol statements;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and .

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping odequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and
Company's fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any lime the financial position of the Group and Company onJ
enable them fo ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and Company ond hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Company’s website. Legislotion in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Directors’ Report continued

The Directors consider that the Annucl Report and Accounts, laken
as a whole, is fair, balanced and understondable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group and
Company's performance, business model and sirategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in

Annual Report and Accounts 2018, confirm thal, 1o the best of their

knowledge:

¢ the Group and Company financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, give a frue and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and loss of the Group and loss of the Company; and

¢ the Directors’ Report includes ¢ fair review of the development
ond performance of the business and the position of the Group
and Company, fogether with a description of the principal risks
ond uncertainties that it faces.

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report

is approved:

* 5o far os the Direclor is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Group and Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

o ihey have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as @
director in order to make themselves aware of ony relevant qudit
information and to establish that the Group and Compony's
auditors are aware of that information.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise
borrowings, cash and liquid resources, and various items, such as
trade receivables, trode payables, etc. that arise directly from its
operations. The Group's financial liobilities comprise borrowings,
trade payables, other payables and finance leases. The main
purpose of the Group's borrowings is to provide finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has financicl assets comprising cash
and trade and other receivables.

The Group also enters into derivatives fransactions {principolly
forward foreign currency coniracts]. The purpose of such fransactions
is to manage the currency risks arising from the Group's operations.
It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's
policy that no speculative trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The financial risk is managed by the Group and more information
on this can be found within the Notes to the Financial Statements.

PERSONNEL POLICIES

Horby is committed to eliminating discrimination and encouragin
diversity amongst our workforce. Our aim is that our workforce wiﬁ
be fruly representative of all sections of society and each employee
feels respected and ‘oble to give of their best.

To that end, the purpose of personnel policies is to provide equality
and fairness for all in our employment and not to discriminate on
grounds of gender, marital stalus, race, ethnic origin, colour,
nationalily, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, religion or
age. We oppose all forms of unlawful and unfair discrimination.

All employees, whether part time, full time or temporary, are treated
fairly and with respect. Selection for employment, promotion,
fraining or any other benefit is on the basis of optitude and ability.
All employees are helped and encouraged to develop their full
potential and the talents and resources of the workforce are fully
utilised to maximise the efficiency of the organisation.

Our commitmentis are:

* o create an environment in which individual differences and the
contributions of all our staff are recognised and valued;

* every employee is entifled to a working environment that

romotes dignity and respect fo all. No form of intimidation,

Eullying or harassment is tolerated;

e tiaining, development and progression opportunities are
available to alt staff;

e equdlity in the workploce is good manogement proclice ond
makes sound business sense;

e 1o regularly review all our employment practices ard procedures
to ensure faimess;

* breaches of our equality policy are regarded as misconduct and
may lead to disciplinary proceedings; and

e these policies will be monitored and reviewed on @ regulor basis.

The Group places importonce on the contributions made by all
employees fo the progress of the Group and aims lo keep them
informed via formal and informal meetings.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share copital of the Company comprises ordinary shares of 1p
each. Each sEcre carries the right to one vote at general meetings of
the Company. The issued share capital of the Company, together
with movements in the Company's issued share capital, is shown in
note 21.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
A resolution fo re-appoint the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
will be proposed af the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting is to be scheduled for late September
2018. A Notice of the Annual General Meeting will be sent out to
shareholders separately to this Annual Report and Accounts.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Executive Directors’ bose salaries are reviewed annually by the
Remuneration Commiltee toking into account the responsibilities,
skills and experience of each individual, pay and employment
conditions within the Company and salary levels within listed
componies of a similor size.
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The following table summarises the total salary and pension contributions received by Directors for 2017-18 and 2016-17 in line with the

Companies Act 2006 requirement:

AUDITED
Year ended 31 March 2018 Yeor ended 31 Maich 2017
Basic safary, Total salary  Basic sclary, Totol salary
allowances Pension  and pension dllowances Pension ond pension
andfees  contributions  contributions andfees  contricuiions Sonus  contributions
. £000 £000 £'000 £000 £°000 £000 £'00C
L Davies [Appointed 5 October 2017) 100 - 100 ~ - - -
K Gould {Appoinied 4 Jonuary 2018} 34 [ 40 ~ - - -
] Wilson [Appointed 1 August 2017) - - - = - - -
J Stansfield (Appointed 4 Jonuary 2018) 9 - 9 -~ - - -
S Cooke'* [Resigned 3 October 2017) 365 38 4034 283 51 148 482
D Mulligan? (Resigned 31 December 2017) 2182 26 244 184 18 65 267
M George |Appointed 22 December 2016) 49 - 49 11 - - 11
R Canham? [Resigned 21 June 2017) 252 - 25 100 - - 100
D Adams [Resigned 31 December 2017) 49 - 49 40 - - 40
C Caminada (Resigned 22 December 2016} - - - 106 - - 106
Total . 849 70 919 724 69 213 1,006
1 = Excluded from within this omount is compensation for loss of office totolling £155,652.
2 - Excluded from this amount is compensation for loss of office otalling £174,697.
3 - Excluded hom this amount is compensation for loss of office iotalling £25,000.
4 - Highest peid Director.
Performance Share Plan {'PSP’) awards outstanding (Audited)
At 31 March 2018, outstonding owards to Directors under the PSP were as follows:
Mctket price of Awacrded Lcpsed Vested  At31 March
Director Award dete Vesting date oword dete Al Apiil 2017 during yeor during yeor during yeor 2018
S Cooke Aug 2015 Aug 2018 105.0p 190,476 - 190,476 - -
Dec 2016 Mar 2019 29.0p 2,136,752 - 1914209 222,543 -
R Canham Dec 2016 Mar 2019 29.0p 170,940 - 153,137 17,803 -
D Mulligan Dec 2016 Mar 2019 29.0p 598,290 - 535978 62,312 -

For the 2015 awards, the outstanding awards lapsed during the year.

For the 2016 awards, these partially vested on 23 June 2017 when there was a change in control ond Phoenix Asset Management Pariners

Limited became the majority shareholder, and the rest lapsed.

Future incentive schemes are currently being formalised for the new management team.
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Directors’ Report continued

Benefits and pension (Unaudited)

Policies concerming benefits, including the Group's company car
policy, are reviewed periodically. Currenily, benefits in kin
comprise molor cars or o Iravel allowance and private health cover,
both of which are non-performance related. The Executive Direciors
and senior managers are members of defined contribution pension
schemes and onnual contributions are calculated by reference 1o
base salaries, with neither annual bonuses nor awards under the
share incentive schemes taken info account in calculating the
amounis due.

Executive Directors’ service contracts (Unaudited)
Executive Directors do not have fixed period contracts.

Payments to past Directors, policy on payment for loss of office
and termination payments (Audited)

Payments to past Directors totalled £355,349, made up of payments
to Steve Cooke (£155,652], David Mulligan (£174,697} ond Roger
Canhom [£25,000) under their respective setlement agreements.
There were no other payments to past Directors made during the
year. Notice periods are set under individual service contracts but
the Company has a policy for Executive Directors of a notice period
of nine months 1o be given by the Company and of six months to be
given by the individual. The compensation ?lor loss of office is bosed
upon the respective service coniracts and the components are
based on the base salary of the Director. Any outstonding awards
under the Company’s PSP share scheme are subject to good leaver
provisions under the scheme's rules. Under certain circumsiances and
subject fo certain criteria, the Remuneration Committee has the
power lo delermine the vesting of any oulstanding awards.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Interests in shares {Audited)

In addition to their interests in shares in the Performance Share Plans,
the interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company at

31 March 2018 ond 31 March 2017 were:

At31 March At 31 March
2018 2017
number number
Executive Directors

L Davies - N/A
K Gould - N/A

Non-Executive Directors
M George - -
1 Wilson - N/A
| Stansfield 64,052 N/A

All the interesls detailed above are beneficial. Apart from the
interests disclosed above, no Directors were interested at any lime
in the year in the share capital of any other Group company. James
Wilson is also o pariner at Phoenix Asset Manogement Pariners
Limited who hold a substantial shareholding in Hornby PLC.

(Qowid

On behdlf of the Board

Kirstie Gould

Chief Finance Officer
3rd Floor, The Gateway
Innovation Way
Discovery Park
Sondwicrm

Kent CT13 QFF

18 June 2018
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members

of Hornby PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

In our opinion, Hornby PLC's Group financial statements and

Company financial slatements (the ‘financial siatements)):

¢ give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the
Company's offoirs as at 31 March 2018 and of the Group's and
the Company’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union: and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

We hove audited the financial statements, included within the Annual
Report and Accounts 2018 {the ‘Annual Report’), which comprise: the
Group and Company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2018; the Group and Company stolements of comprehensive income,
the Group and Company sialements of changes in equity, and the
Group and Company cash flow statements for the year then ended;
and the notes to the Kncncicl statements, which incKJde @ descripfion
of the significant accounting policies.

Our audit approach
Overview

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing {UK) '1SAs (UK]') and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under ISAs [UK] are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statlements section of our report. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriote o provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the
ethical requirements thot are relevant to our audit of the finoncial
statements in the UK, which includes the Financial Reporting
Council's (FRC's) Ethical Standard, as applicable 1o listed entities,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. .

* Overall Group materiality: £400,000 (2017: £350,000), bosed on approximately 5% of underlying loss

before tox.

¢ Overall Company materiality: £320,000 {2017: £315,000), bosed on 1% of total ossets, restricted so

that it does not exceed Group maiericlity

Materiality

¢ We performed an audit of the complete financial information of two full scope components, being Hormby
PLC and Hornby Hobbies Limited. We also performed deskiop reviews over the European sales offices
ond US trading subsidiary, and audited the consolidation including consolidation adjustments.

¢ Our full scope components provided coverage of 93% of Group revenue (2017: 84%), and 85% of Group
underlying loss before tox (2017: 66%), increasing to 100% coverage for both revenue and underlying

Audit Scope loss belfore tax when review and consolidation procedures are included.
¢ All entities are managed from one ceniral location in the UK. All audit work was undertaken by the UK
engagement team.
Key Audit )
G G dC )
Matters oing concern (Group and Company)

Recording of revenue (Group).
Royally provision (Group).
Inventory provisioning [Group.

Impairment of goodwill, investments and intangibles {Group and Company).

Classification of exceptiondl items [Group and Company).

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined matericlity and
ossessed ihe risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked at where the Directors made
subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant
accounting eslimates that involved making assumptions and
considering future events that are inherently uncertain.

As in all of our audits we olso oddressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was
evidence of bias by the Directors that represented o risk of material
missiatement due lo fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional
|uc?lgemenr, were of most significance in the oudit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant
ossessed risks of mcteriormisstotemem (whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest
effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the
audil; ond directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters, and any comments we make on the resulls of our
procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as o whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a seporate opinion on these
matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members

of Hornby PLC continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Going concern
Refer to note 1 within the Notes fo the Financial Statements for
further information.

Due o the recent trading performance of the Group, there is a risk
of the Group and Company being unable lo continue as a going
concern.

The Group had forecast that it would breach bank covenants
associated with a £6 million revolving credit facility of 31 Morch
2018. These covenants were formerly waived and so no covenant
breach occurred. The Group has refinanced these borrowings with a
£12 million asset based facility and £6 million drawdown facility.

The Directors have prepared a cosh flow model to 31 March 2021
which incorporates the strategy of the new CEO, and the expected
impact of the siralegy on trading resulis including revenue growth,
margin improvement and cost savings. This model shows that there is
cash headroom throughout the forecast period, covenants associated
with the new financing agreements will not be breached, and
indicotes that the Group will be able to continue os a going
concern.

Group and Company

We have tested the cash flow model for mathematical accuracy.
We have discussed the key assumptions in the cash flow model with
the Directors and assessed the reasonableness of each assumpiion,
nofing that forecast improvements in gross margin are importont
factors in delivering the plan. We have performed sensitivity analysis
fo assess whether a reasonably possible change in o key assumption
would result in a need for further financing. We have reviewed the
covenants within the new financing agreements and ensured that
these are not breached based on the cosh flow model. We hove
also reviewed the postyear end performance of the Group.

Please see our conclusion within the ‘Conclusions. relating to going
concern’ section.

Imruirment of goodwill, investments and intangibles
Reter to note 8, note 9 and note 11 within the Notes to the Financial
Statements for further information.

The Group has £4.6 million of goodwill (31 March 2017:

£4.6 million} and £2.2 million of intangible assets {31 March 2017:
£2.5 million) relating to brand names and customer lists. Hornby PLC
also holds an investment in subsidiaries of £23.3 million (31 March
2017: £22.7 willion) in the Compony financial statements.

Recovery of these amounts is dependent on future cash flows
associated with the respective asset and there is o risk that if these
cash Hows do not meet the Group's expeciations then assets might
be impaired.

Group and Company

We have reviewed the Direclors’ impairment assessments for
goodwill, investments and intangibles for reasonableness.

We have considered the Directors’ assessmenis, which coniain a
number of judgements and estimates including growth in profit
margins, and use assumptions for long-term growth rates and
discount rates.

We assessed the mathematical accuracy of the Directors’ cash flow
model and agreed the underlying forecasts to Board-opproved
budgets and assessed how these budgets were compiled. With the
support of our valuations experts, we assessed the terminal growth
rates and discount rates opplied by the Directors to third party
information and applied our independent view of more appropricte
rates to the Directors’ forecast.

We challenged the Directors as to the appropriateness of the level
of aggregation of each cash generating unit {CGU’) and the
independence of cash flows from other assets. We considered the
reliability of the Directors” historical forecasting for revenue, profit and
cash conversion by comparing budgeted results to aciual
performance. As a result of our work, we determined that it was
appropriate that no impairment charge was recognised for goodwill
ond intangible assets in the Group financial sialements and that
appropriate disclosures had been made.

The Directors identified that an impairment charge of £1.0 million
should be recognised in respect of invesiments in the Homby PIC
financial statements.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recording of revenue

Refer to note 1 within the Notes to the Financial Statements for

further information.

The Group has recorded £35.7 million of revenue (2017: £47.4
million). There is a risk that revenue may be fraudulently recorded
ond may not exist.

Group

We reviewed the revenue recognition policy and found the policy to
be appropriate and consistent with the prior year. For Homby
Hobbies Limited, representing 93% of revenue, we performed a
walkthrough of the revenue process to understand how revenue is
recognised and performed detailed testing by selecting a sample of

" fransactions and agreed them to despaich notes and cash receipts

to gain ossurance over the occurrence of revenue. This was
supported by festing a sample of items to price lists and discount
agreements, tesling o somple of manuol journals to supporting
documentation and testing sales close to the yeor end to shipping
documentation. We performed analytical procedures on scles for
the other territories. Our work did not identify any exceptions.

Royalty provision
Refer to note 1 within the Notes to the Financial Statements for
further information.

The Group has recorded a royalty provision of £0.7 million as ot
31 March 2018 {31 March 2017: £0.2 million). This includes
omounis in relolion 1o royollies for the sole of licensed goods. We
focused on this area as it is @ material provision and there is
judgement in assessing the amount of the provision.

Group

We obtained an understanding of the methodology used by the
Group for determining royalty accruals in relation to the sale of
licensed goods. We reconciYed the value used for sales of licensed
goods in the calculations back to sales in the year and tested

a sample of royalty percentages used to o sample of contacts.

We tested payments made during the yeor lo bank statements

and considered the Directors” ability 1o estimate the amount in the
prior year.

In relation to ongoing discussions with suppliers, we assessed the
most likely outcome of these discussions.

No issues arose from our work to suggest that the provision was
materially misstated.

Inventory provisioning
Refer to note 12 within the Notes to the Financial Statements for
further information.

The Group held £10.0 million of inventory as at 31 March 2018
(31 I\Aorcﬁ 2017: £9.7 million). The nature of the Group's business
model is to supply toy and hobby products to the global market
through a series of brands. There is a risk that aged inventory may
be difficult to sell. The completeness of the inventory provision is an
orea of focus for the audit.

Group

We obiained an understanding of the methodology used in the
inventory provision and agreed the values used in the calculation o
the general ledger. For a sample of stock lines, we tesled the ageing
ond that they had been appropriately categorised for the purposes
of calculating the provision. We then recomputed the inventory
provision based on the provisioning methodology, reviewed the
completeness of the provision by assessing aged unprovided
inventory balances against the sales plan, and performed some
sensitivity analysis to assess whelher there was a risk of material
misstatement in the provision.

Nothing arose from our work to suggest that the provisions recorded
were materially misstated.

Classification of exceptional items
Refer to note 4 within the Notes to the Financial Statements for
further information.

The Group has recorded exceptional items of £2.3 million

{31 March 2017: £3.3 million) and the Company hos recorded
exceptional ilems of £1.9 million (31 March 2017: £5.8 million).
These items are considered to be one-off and exceptional in nature.
We focused on this orea because the classification of ifems as
exceptional requires judgement.

Group and Company

We discussed with the Directors and understood the events in the
year which were considered to be exceptional. We considered
whether the classification of items was consistent with the Group's
accounting policy and treatment in prior years. We tested a sample
of items to third party support, and challenged the Directors on
whether it might be more appropriate to reflect the costs in the
underlying results. We considered whether the Group has taken a
balanced approach to this orea, and reviewed for potenticl one-off
items of income which would require treatment consistent with
one-off items of cost.

Our testing did not identify any costs that had been inappropriately
classitied.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members

of Hornby PLC continued

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
stotements as @ whole, 1aking info account the structure of the Group
ond the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which they operale.

The Group's business model is to supply toy and hobby products
to the global market through o series o?/ brands. The majority of
operations are performed within the UK trading subsidiary, Hornby
Hobbies Limited. There is also a trading company in the US and
sales offices in France, Germany, ltaly and Spain. All entities are
managed from one central location in the UK. The scope of our
audit includes a full scope audit of the financial information of
Horby PLC and Hornby Hobbies Limited. Analytical review
procedures have been performed on the US company and

Group financial statements

European sales offices. We have also audited consolidation entries.
All audit work was pertormed by the UK audit teom.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of
maleriality. We sel cerlain quantitative IhresholcE for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to
determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures on Ihe individual financial slatement line
items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements,
both individually and in aggregate, on the finoncial statements

as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for
the financial slatements as a whole as follows:

Company financial statements

Overall materiality

£400,000 (2017: £350,000).

£320,000 (2017: £315,000).

How we determined it

Approximately 5% of underlying loss before tox.

1% of total assets, restricted so that it does not
exceed Group materiality.

Rationale for benchmark applied

the performance of the Grou
generally accepted auditing

Based on the benchmarks used in the Annual
Report, underlying loss before tox is the primary
measure used by the shareholders in assessing
andis a
nchmark on the

The Company is primarily o holding company
and we consider that total assets is the most
appropriate benchmark for assessing moleriality.

basis that the exceptional ilems are non-
recurring and do not reflect the underlying

performance of the business.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated
a moteriality that is less than our overall Group matericlity. The
range of materiality allocated across components was between

£320,000 and £380,000.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report o
them misstafements identified during our audit above £12,500
{Group audit) {2017: £12,500) cng £12,500 [Compony audit)
{2017- £12,500) as well as misstatements below those amounts
that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in

relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

* the Directors’ use of the going concemn basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; o

¢ the Directors have not disclosed in the financial siatements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the Group's and Company’s ability to continue to adopt
the going concern boasis of accounting for o period of ot least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements ore
authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this stalement is not a guaraniee as o the Group's and
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual
Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audil opinion
or, except fo the extent otherwise explicilly siated in this report, any
form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial slatements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the financial siatements or our knowledge oblained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify

an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we

are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there

is @ material misstatement of the financial statements or o material
misstatement of the other information. If, bosed on the work we have
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performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Direclors’ Report, we also
considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies
Act 2006 have been included.

Bosed on the responsibiliies described above and our work
underioken in the course of the audit, ISAs [UK) require us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report ‘

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the
audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report for the year ended 31 March 2018 is consistent with the
financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstalements in the Strategic Report
and Direclors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
set out on page 13, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable
framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements thot are free from material misstatement, whether due to
traud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability fo continue as a
going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend Io liquidate the Group or the Company or io
cease operafions, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financiat statements as a whole are free from material missiatement,
whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable ossurance is a high level of
assurance, bul is not a guarantee that an audit conducled in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect o material misstatement
when it exists. Misstalements can arise from froud or error and ore
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk /auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our ouditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of :T:e Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose.
We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
ogreed by our prior consent in writing.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report fo you ff,

in our opinion:

* we have nol received all the information and explanations we

require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the

Company, or returns adequate for our oudit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by low
ore nol made; or

o the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the
occounting records and relurns.

e have no,exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Graham uméert 'genlor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Gatwick

18 June 2018
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Group and Company Statements of

Comprehensive Income
- for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Note £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Revenue 2 35,651 47420 1,493 1,370
Cosl of sales (21,900} (29,270) - -
Gross profit 13,751 18,150 1,493 1,370
Distribution costs {7.224) (8,419) - -
Selling and marketing costs (7,647) (10,294) - -
Administrative expenses 6,021)  [5,680) (1,416) (1,264)
Other operating {expenses)/gains (437) 358 - -
Operating [loss)/profit before exceptional items 4 (7.578)  (5,885) 77 106
Exceplional ilems (2,292) (3,303) (1,889) (5,801
Operating loss 2 (9,870) 9,188) {1,812} 15,695)
Finance income 3 7 S5 175 175
Finonce costs 3 (218) {326) {216) (205)
Net finance expense 3 (21) [321) (41) (30)
Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method 15 - 15 -
Loss before taxation 4 {10,066) (9.509) (1,838) (5,725)
Income tax credit/(charge) 5 212 (157) - 100
Loss for the year after taxation (9.854) (2.666) (1,838) (5,625)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be subsequenily reclassified to profit or loss:
Cosh flow hedges, net of tax (353) {452) - -
Currency translation [losses)/gains (54) 15 (76) (390)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax (407) (437) {76) {390)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (10,261) {10,103) 1,914) 6,015)
Loss per ordinary share
Basic 7 (1013)p (1265
Diluted 7 (1013p (1265p

Al results relate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 26 to 57 form part of these accounts.
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Group and Company Statements

of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2018

MIINYINO

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 oo
Assets =]
Non-current assets . 85
Goodwil 8 4564 4,554 - - 2
Intangible assets Q 3,368 4,214 - -
Property, plant and equipment 10 4,489 5,683 - -
Investments i 1,615 - 23,300 22,657
Deferred tax assets 20 2,030 1974 - -
16,066 16,425 23,300 22,657
Current assets o
Inventories 12 10,030 Q.680 - - 2
Trade and other receivables 13 5,949 Q246 33,529 24,09 =
Derivative financial instruments 19 - 120 - - ;z>
Current lox assefs 17 - S50 - 50 é
Cash and cash equivalents 14 3,878 1,580 4 6
’ 19,857 20,676 33,533 24,165
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings : i8 - 82) - - v
Trade and other payables 15 4,312)  [6,664) {159) (27) a;
Derivative financial instruments 19 {423) (190} - - ; %
Provisions 16 (174) (196} - - E >
Current tox liabilities 17 - (212) - - ar
{4,909) (7.344) (159) (27)
Net current assets 14,948 13,332 33,374 24,138
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 18 - - (5,849) (5,518)
Deferred tax liabilities 20 (150) (94) - -
(150) [94)  (5,849) (5,518)
Net assets 30,864 29,663 50,825 41,277
Equity aftributable to owners of the parent '
Share capital 21 1,253 846 1,253 846
Share premium 38,587 27445 38,587 27445
Capital redemption reserve 23 55 55 55 55
Translalion reserve 23 {1,425) (1,371) (1,220) (1,144)
Hedging reserve 23 (423) {70) - -
Other reserves 23 1,688 1,688 19,145 19145
Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) (8,871) 1,070 6,995 {5,070
Total equity ’ ’ 30,864 290663 50,825 41,277

The Company made a total comprehensive loss for the year of £1,914,000 (2017: £6,015,000).

The notes on pages 26 to 57 form port of these accounts. The financial statements on pages 24 to 58 were approved by the Boord of
Directors on 18 June 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

K Gould @m ‘

Director
Registered Company Number: 01547390
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Group and Company Statements
of Changes in Equity

for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Retoined
Copitol earmings/ :
Shore Shore redemption Trznslaticn Hedging Other  {occumulated Total
copilat premiym reserve reserve reserve reserves losses} equity
Group £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Balance ai 1 April 2016 550 20,205 55 (1,386) 382 1,688 10,642 32,136
Loss for the year - - - - - - 2.666)  {9.666)
Other comprehensive income/|expense] for
the year - - - 15 (452) - - 437)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - 15 {452) - (9,666) (10,103}
Transactions with owners
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 296 7.240 - - - - - 7,536
Share-based payments (note 22) - - - - - - Q4 Q4
Total transactions with owners 296 7,240 - - - - 94 7,630
Balance at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 846 27,445 55 (1,377) {70) 1,688 1,070 29,663
Loss for the year - - - - - - (9,854) (9.854)
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - (54) [353) - - {407)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (54) (353) - (9,854) (10,261)
Transactions with owners
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 407 11,142 - - - - - 11,549
Share-based payments [note 22) - - - - - - (87) (87)
Total transactions with owners 407 11,142 - - - - (87} 11,462
Balance at 31 March 2018 1,253 38,587 55 (1,425} (423) 1,688 (8,871) 30,864
Reicined
Cagitol earnings/
Share Share redemplicn Translotion Other  (accumulated Totol
capital premium reserve reserve reserves losses) equity
Company £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Balonce ot 1 April 2016 550 20,205 55 (754) 19145 461 39662
Loss for the year - - - - - {5,625) {5,625)
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - (390} - - (390)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (390) - (5,625) {6,015)
Transactions with owners
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 296 7,240 - - - - 7,536
Share-based paymenis - - - - - Q4 Q4
Total transactions with owners 296 7,240 - - - Q4 7630
Balance at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 846 27,445 55 (1,144) 19,145 (5,070) 41,277
Loss for the year - - - - - (1,838} (1,838)
Oiher comprehensive expense for the year - - - (76) - - [76)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (76) - {1,838) (1,914)
Transactions with owners
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 407 11,142 - - - - 11,549
Share-based payments - - - - - (87] (87)
Total transactions with owners 407 11,142 - - - (87) 11,462
Balance at 31 March 2018 1,253 38,587 55 (1,220) 19,145 6,995) 50,825

The notes on pages 26 to 57 form part of these accounts.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements

for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Group Company
2018 2017 . 2018 2017

Note £'000 £°000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 28 (5,489) Q1 (640)  {1,080)
Interest paid : (218) (326) (198) (205)
Tax received/(paid) 50 118 50 (89)
Repoyments of loans and cash-setiled share-based payments {136) (188) {136} -
Net cash {used in)/generated from operating activities (5,793) (305) [924) (1,374)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of associate 11 {1,600) - {1,600) -
Proceeds from sole of properly, plant and equipment 4 3,338 - 2,248
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 (1,648) (1,756 - -
Purchase of intongible ossets 9 (146} (226) - -
Interest received 7 5 175 175
Net cash {used in)/generated from investing activities (3,383) 1,361 (1,425) 2,423
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 12,000 8,000 12,000 8,000
Share issue costs {451) {464) {451) {464)
Advonces to subsidiary underiokings - - [9,202)  (8,580)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 11,549 7536 2,347 (1,044)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,373 8,592 {2) 5
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts ai beginning of the year 1,498 (7,029) 6 1
Effect of exchange rote movements 7 (65) - -
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 3,878 1,498 4 6
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts consist of:
Cash ond cosh equivalents 14 3,878 1,580 4 o)
Bank overdrafts 18 - (82) - -
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 3,878 1,498 4 6
The notes on pages 26 to 57 form part of these accounts.

Hornby PLC Annual Report ond Azcounis 2018 25

LOdN
JONVNIIA0D Jl931ivats MIIAMIAO

SINIWILVIS
IVIONVNI



Notes to the Financial Statements

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2018

The principoroccouming policies adopted in the preparation of these financial stalemenis are sef out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been prepored in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards ['IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union {'EL'), IFRS Interpreiations Committee (IFRS-IC’) interpretations and with those parts of

the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporfing under IFRS. The consolidated Group and Parent Company financial siatements
" have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention, as moditied by the revaluation of cerlain finoncial
assets and liabilities {including j;erivotive instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions thal affect the reported amounts
of assets and licbilities al the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues ond expenses during the reporting
period. Although these eslimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ullimately may
differ from those esfimates.

Going concern

The Group has in place a £12 million banking facility with PNC Credit Limited through to June 2023 and available net cash of £3.9 million
at 31 March 2018. In oddition, the Group has a rolling three-year £6 million loan facility available with its main shareholder, Phoenix Asset
Manogement Pariners Limited.

The Group has prepared trading and cosh flow forecasts for a period of three years, which have been reviewed and approved by the
Board. On the basis of these forecasts, the facilities described above and after detailed review of trading, financial position and cash How
models, the Directors have a reasonable expeciation that the Group and Company have adequate resources 1o continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. For these reasons, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operoting policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries ore fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchose method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, ond liabilities incurred or ossumed af the date of exchange, plus
costs directly atiributable to the acquisition. Identitiable assets acquired, and liabilities and conlingent liabiliies ossumed in a business
combination are measured initially ot their fair values of the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The

excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assels acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unredlised gains on transactions between Group comparnies are eliminated. Unreclised losses are
also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator of the asset concemed. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Adoption of new and revised standards

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations will be effective for future annual periods beginning after

1 jonuary 2018 and, therefore, have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. The expecied impact of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments’, IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS 16 ‘leases’ on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is disclosed below.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ was issued in July 2014 to replace IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recogpnition and Measurement” and has been
endorsed by the EU. The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and will be adopted by the
Group on 1 April 2018. . ‘

IFRS 9 will impact the classification and measurement of the Group's financial instruments and will require cerfain additional disclosures.

The primary changes relate 1o the assessment of hedging arrangements and provisioning for potential future credit losses on finonciol asses;
the Group is continuing to analyse the impact of these changes which are not currently considered likely to have any major impact on the
Group's current accounting treaiment or hedging activities. Management has concluded an initial assessment and the impact is not material.
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IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IFRS 15 is effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The standord was endorsed by the EU during 2016. The Group has
not adopted this standard early. IFRS 15 changes how and when revenue is recognised from coniracts with customers. The Group will be
required to identify all contracts it has with customers in order to determine whether, how much and when, revenue is recognised. The Group
has not identified any revenue streams that will be impacied by the new standard. The Group plans to adopt IFRS 15 in its consolidated
financial statemenls for the year ending 31 March 2019. Monagement has concluded on initial ossessment and the impact is not material.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ .

IFRS 16 is effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019. The standard was endorsed by the EU during 2017. The Group
does not plan to adopt this siandard early. IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases.

The Group will be required to recognise all leases with a term of more than twelve months as a right-ofuse lease asset on its balance sheet.
The Group will also recognise a financial liability representing ils obligation to make future lease payments. The Group has conducted an
iniial quantification of the impact of adopting the stondard, based on its existing lease contracts. The most significant impact is in respect of
its various office and warehouse premises. TEe impact using the modified retrospective approach is expected to be the recognition of a lease
liability of £1.9 million, with a corresponding right-of-use asset.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the sale of goods net of value added tax, rebates and discounts, royalty income and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised os follows:

(@) Sale of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has delivered products to the customer. The customer is either a trade customer
or the consumer when sold through Hornby concessions in various retail outlets, or via the internet.
(b) Royalty income
Royally income is recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
lc) SuTes returns
The Group establishes a sales returns provision of the period end that reduces revenue in anticipation of customer returns of goods sold
in the period.
{d] Hornby Visitor Centre
Revenue is generated from the ticket and product sales at our Visitor Centre in Margate and recognised at the point of sale.

Dividend income in the Company is recognised upon receipt. Management fees are recognised in the Company on an accruals basis in
relation to costs incurred on behalf of subsidiary companies.

Exceptional items

Where items of income and expense included in the statement of comprehensive income are considered to be material and exceptional in
nature, separate disclosure of their nature and amount is provided in the financial siatements. These items are classified as exceptional items.
The Group considers the size and nature of an item both individually and when aggregated with similar items when considering whether it is
material, for example impairment of intangible ossets or restructuring costs.

Operating segments

Operating segmentis are reported in o manner consistent with the infernal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-moker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operaling segments, has been
identitied as the Board of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Operating profit of each reporting segment includes revenue and expenses directly atiributable to or able to be allocated on a reasonable

basis. Segment assets and liabilities are those operating assets and liabilities directly attributable to or that can be cllocated on a
reasonable basis.

Business combinations

Goodwill arising on a business combination before and after 1 April 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, is not subject to amortisation
but tested for impairment on an annual basis. intangible assets, excluding goodwill, arising on a business combination subsequent to

1 April 2004, are separately identified and valued, and subject to amortisation over their estimated economic lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES confinued
Associate with equity accounting
The investment in December 2017 in 49% of LCD Enterprises Limited is included in these accounts using the equity method.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is inilially recognised ol cost, and the carrying omount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of
the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an asscciate is reduced but scijgnificonl influence is refained, only a proporlionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit and loss where appropriate. .

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with @ corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
refciivobles, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of ihe associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any obijective evidence that the invesiment in the associale is impaired. If this is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
volue and recognises the amount adjacent o ‘share of profit/{loss) of associates’ in the income statement.

Gains resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements onﬁ/ fo the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset ransferred. Any dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in the
income stctement.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried ol cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill reloting to the enlity sold. Goodwill is
allocated to CGUs for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made 1o those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expecled to
benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating segment. Goodwill is recorded in the
currency of the CGU to which it is allocated.

Intangibles
Other intangibles include brands, customer lists and computer software. They are recognised initially ot fair value determined in accordance
with appropriate valuation methodologies, and subjected to amortisation and annuol impairment reviews, as follows:

{a) Brand names
Brand names, acquired as part of a business combination, are capitalised at foir value as at the date of acquisition. They are carried
at their fair value less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straightline
method to allocate the fair value of brand names over Izeir estimated economic life of 15-20 years. Brand nomes have been valued
on a 'relief from royolty' basis.

(b} Customer lists
Customer lists, acquired as part of o business combination, are capitalised at fair value as ot the dote of acquisition. They are carried ot
their fair value less accumulated omortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straightline
method 1o allocate the fair value of customer relationships over their estimated economic life of ten years. Customer lists have been valued
according to discounted incremental operating profit expected to be generated from each of them over their useful lives.

(<) Computer software ,
Computer software expenditure is capitalised at the value af the dote of acquisition and depreciated over a useful economic life of four
lo six yeors.
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Property, plant and equipment

Lland ond buildings are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation. Assets revalued prior to the transition to IFRS use this valuation as
deemed cost ai lﬁis date. Other property, plont and equipment are shown at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the
original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided at rates colculated to write off the cost or valuation of each assel, on o straightline basis [with the exception of lools
ond moulds) over its expected useful life to its residual value, os follows:

Plant ond equipment - 510 10 years
Motor vehicles - 4 years

Tools and moulds are depreciated at varying rales in line with the related estimated product soles on an item-by-item basis up to a maximum
of four years.

Impairment of non-current assets

Assets thot have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment when evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the osset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverobﬁe amount,
which is considered 1o be the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs to sell. In order to ossess impairment, assets are grouped into
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Cash flows used to assess impairment are discounted using
approgpriate rales taking inlo account the cost of equity and any risks relevant to those assels.

Investments .
In the Company's financial statements, investmenis in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any impairment. Invesiments revolued
using the equity method of valuation prior to the transition to IFRS use this valuation as deemed cost at this date. Dividend income is shown
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated ot the lower of cost and net redlisable value. Cost is predominantly determined using the firstin, firstout {FIFO’) method.
Alternative methods may be used when proven to generate no material difference. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads {based on normal operating capacity).

Net realisable value is bosed on anticipated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. Provisions
are made against those stocks considered to be obsolete or excess to requirements on an item-by-item basis.

The replacement cosl, based upon latest invoice prices before the balance sheet date, is considered to be higher ihan the balance sheet
value of inventories at the year end due fo price rises and exchange fluctuations. It is not considered practicable to provide an accurate
estimate of the difference ot the year end date.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group and Company's Statements of Financial Position when the Group or
Company becomes a party to the coniractual provisions of the insirument.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised inilially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorlised cost less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment is estoblished when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able 1o collect all amounts due according 1o the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial licbilities and equity instruments are classified according fo the substance of the coniractual arrangements entered inio.

An equily insirument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the ossets of the Group and Company after deducting all of its
liobilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group and Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Sales returns provisions

Provisions for soles returns are recognised when the Group has a constructive obligation as a result of o past event. Provisions for sales returns
are measured al the present volue of the expendilure expecied 1o be required to settle the obligation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement includes cash in hand, deposits at banks, other liquid invesiments with
original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts or loans where there is no right of set off are shown within
borrowings in current or non-current liabilities on the balance sheet as appropriate.

Borrowing costs :

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried ot amortised cost; any
difference belween the proceeds [net of ransaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan faciliies are recognised as transaction cosls of the loan fo the extent that it is probable that some or
alf of the facility will be drown down. In this cose, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs and subsequently amortised over the life of
the focility. To the extent that there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drown down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initiclly ot fair value and subsequenily measured ot amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Taxations, including deferred tax
Corporation fax, where payable, is provided on taxable profits at the current rate.

The taxation licbilities of certain Group undertokings are reduced wholly or in part by the surrender of losses by fellow Group undertakings.

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the bolance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
corrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tox assets and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be cvoiloEle against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of
unused lox assets and unused tax losses, can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred income tox assets is reviewed at each balance
sheef date and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient toxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax assef to be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is o legally enforceable right to offset current tox assets against current tax
liobilities, ond when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or ditferent taxable enlilies where there is an intention lo setile the balances on a net basis.

Deferred tox ossets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is sefiled, based on tox rates [ond lox laws| that have been enacied or substantively enacted at the bolance sheet date. Tax relating
fo items recognised directly in equily is recognised in equity and not in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Share-based payment
The Group operates the PSP [‘Performance Share Plan’) for Executive Direclors and senior executives. Awards under the scheme are gronted
in the form of o nil-priced option and are sotisfied using moiketpurchosed shores.

The PSP owards that were outstanding at 31 March 2017 only vested if performance condifions were met. Awards granted under the PSP
must be exercised within one year of the relevant oward vesting date. There were no awards outstanding ot 31 March 2018.

On 23 June 2017, Phoenix UK Fund Limited put forward a mondatory unconditional cash offer by Phoenix UK Fund for the Hornby shares not
already held by members of the Phoenix Concert Party. As part of the rules of the PSP scheme, this automatically caused the 2016-17 PSP
awards fo ves!. Following on from the change of ownership, and due to the subsequent changes to the Board, no PSP awards hove been
made in 2018. All the remaining PSP awards have now either vested as a result of the takeover offer or have lopsed.
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Employee benefit costs

During the yeor the Group operated o defined contribution money purchase pension scheme under which it pays contributions based upon
o percentage of the members’ basic salary. The scheme is administered by trustees either appoinled by the Company or elected by the
members (to constitute one-third minimum).

Contributions lo defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the Siatement of Comprehensive Income according to the year in
which they are poyable.

Further informalion on pension costs and the scheme arrangements is provided in note 25.

Share capital and share premium
Ordinary shares issued are shown as share copital of nominal value. The premium received on the sale of shares in excess of the nominal
value is shown as share premium within total equity.

Leases
The Group enters into operating leases only. leases clossed as operating leases are expensed on a straightline basis to the Statement of

Comprehensive Income over the lease term.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, markel

interest rates, credit risk and its liquidity position. The Group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to limit adverse effects on
the financial performance of the Group by using foreign currency financial instruments. In oddition, other instruments are used to manage the

Group's interest rate exposure.

(a) Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed lo foreign exchange risks against Sterling, primarily on transactions in US Dollors. It enters into forward currency
coniracts to hedge the cash flows of its product sourcing operation (i.e. it buys US Dollar forwards in exchange for Sterling} and looks
forward six to twelve months on a rolling basis of forecasted purchase volumes. The policy framework requires hedging between 70%
and 100% of onticipated import purchases that are denominated in US Dollors. The Company has granted Euro-denominated
inlercomﬁony loans to subsidiary companies that are translated to Sterling at statutory period ends, thereby creating exchange ?oins or
losses. The loans to the subsidiaries, Horby Deutschland GmbH, Hornby ltalio s.r.| and Homby France S.A.S are classified as long-term
loans and therefore the exchange gains and losses on consolidation are reclassified to the translation reserve in Other Comprehensive
Income as per IAS 21. The loan to the branch in Spain is classified as a long-term loan, however repayable on a shorter fimescale than
those of the other subsidiaries and therefore the exchange gains or losses are token to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(b) Interest rate risk
The Group finances its operations through @ mixture of retained profits and bank borrowings. The Group borrows, principally in Sterling,
at floating rates of interest to meet shortterm funding requirements. At the year end, the Group's borrowings comprised o revolving cregil
facility, bank overdrafts and a fixed-term loon agreement.

(c) Credit risk .

’ The %roup rrllonoges its credit risk through a combination of internal credit management policies and procedures.

(d} Liquidity ris|
Aﬁ3l I\'/\Yorch 2018 the Group had a credit facility of £6 million (2017: £7.75 million) expiring in December 2019 (2017 December
2019). Borrowings in the year ended 31 March 2018 pecked at £7.4 million. The funding needs are determined by monitoring forecast
and actual cash £?lows. The Group regularly monitors its performance against its banking covenants to ensure compliance.

Derivative financial instruments
To manage exposure to foreign currency risk, the Group uses foreign currency forward confracts, also known as derivative financial instruments.

Derivatives are initiolly recognised at fair value on the date o derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value. The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well os
its risk management obijective and straiegy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inceplion and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging fransaclions are highly effective in offsetting
chonges in fair volues of the hedged items.

(a) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Siatement of
Comprehensive Income within operaling expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Amounts accumulated in Other Comprehensive Income are recycled in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the periods when
the hedged item affects profit or loss (for insiance when the forecast purchase that is hedged tokes place). The gain or loss relating to
the effective portion of forward foreign exchange contracts hedging impori purchases is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income within ‘cost of soles’. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a nonfinancial asset
(for example, inventory) the gains and losses previously deferred in the Other Comprehensive Income are transferred from Other
Comprehensive Income and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ullimately recognised
in cost of goods sold in the case of inventory.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain
or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised in income when the forecast transaction is ulimately recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss is
immediately transferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

{b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments are not considered effeclive and do not qualify for hedge accounting. Such derivatives ore classified at fair
value through the Statement of Comprehensive Income, and changes in the ?Ioir value of derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the Statement o?Comprehensive Income.

Fair value estimation
The fair volues of shortterm deposits, loans and overdrafts with o maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximote fo their book values.

The fair values of the derivative financial insiruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 19.

Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in the relevant functional currency at the exchange rates ruling ot the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from such transactions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
except when deferred and disclosed in Other Comprehensive Income as qualifying cash flow hedges. Monetary assets and liabiliiies
denominated in foreign currencies are transloted at the exchange rates ruling af the balance sheet date. and ony exchange differences are
taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange gains/losses recognised in the Statlement of Comprehensive Income relating to foreign currency loans and other foreign
exchange adjustments are included within operating profit.

On consolidation, the Statement of Comprehensive Income and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Sterling using average rates
that existed during the accouniing period. The balance sheets of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Stering at the rates of exchange ruling o the
balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising on the translation of opening and closing net assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Dividend distribution
Finol dividends are recorded in the Statement of Changes in Equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company's
shareholders. Interim dividends are recorded in the period in which they ore approved ond paid.

Critical judgements in applying the accounting policies
The Group's eslimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events thot are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting occounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assefs and liabilities within the next financiol year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill, intangibles and investments
The Group tesis annually whether any goodwill, investment or intangible asset has suffered any impairment. The recoverable amounts of
CGUs have been defermined based on value-in-use calculations. The critical oreas of estimation applied within the impairment reviews
conducled include the weighted average cost of capital used in discounting the cash flows of the CGUs, the forecast margin growth rate,
the growth rate in perpetuity of the cash flows and the forecost operating profits of the CGUs. The judgements used within this ossessment
are set out within note 8.
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Other estimates and assumptions:

{a) Inventory provision
Whenever there is o substantialed risk that an item of stock’s sellable value may be lower than ifs actual stock value, a provision for the
difference between the two values is made. Management review the stock holdings on o regular basis and consider wEere a provision
for excess or obsolete stock should be made based on expected demand for the stock and its condition.

{b) Debtors provision
SFecific debtors are provided for when there is significant doubt that a repayment of debt will be fulfilled considering specific knowledge
ot the customer and sales terms of the debt outstanding.

(c} Fair value of derivatives
The fair value of the financicl derivatives is determined by the mark-to-market value ot the year end date.

(d) Sales provision
The provision for sales returns is based on historic returns data applied to sales for the current year and this provision is reviewed by
management on an ongoing basis.

{e) Provisions for royalty payments
The provision for royally payments is bosed on an estimate of royalty payments due as o percentoge of toial soles. This estimate is
checked on a regular basis for accuracy and from 1 April 2018 the provisions will be calculated by the ERP system bosed on actual
sales of licensed product at the point of sale.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies:

{a} Recognition of deferred tax on losses
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tox losses,
to the extent that it is probob?e that the taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused fax assels and unused fox losses, can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed ot each
balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient toxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

{b) Going concern
The Directors apply judgement to assess whether it is oppropriate for the Group to be reported as a going concern by considering the
business activities and the Group's principal risks and uncertointies. Details of the consideration made are included within the Direclors’
Report [page 12) and the basis of preparation [page 28).

A number of assumplions and estimates are involved in arriving at this judgemeni, including management's projections of future Irading
performance and expeclations of the external economic environment. _

Other judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies:

{a) Equity accounting for LCD Enterprises Limited
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the vofing righis. Invesiments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the invesiment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Group's
share of the change in net assets of LCD Enterprises Limited since the date of the acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board (chief operating decision-maker] that are
used to make sirategic decisions.

The Board considers the business from a geographic perspective. Geographically, management considers the performance in the UK, USA,
Spain, ltaly ond the Rest of Europe.

Although the USA segment does not meet the quontitative thresholds required by IFRS 8, management has concluded that this segment should
be reported, as it is closely monitored by the Board as it is outside Europe.

The Company is o holding company operating in the UK with its results given in the Company Statement of Comprehensive Income on page
22 ond its assets and liabilities given in the Company Statement of Financiol Position on poge 23. Other Compony information is provided in
the other notes to the accounts.

Year ended 31 March 2018

reporteble
UK USA Spain laly  Rest of Euvrope segments Intro-Group Group
£000 £000 £000 £0000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Revenue — External 28,497 2,461 Q40 1,118 2,635 35,651 - 35,651
— Other segments 1,326 - - - - 1,326 (1,326) 0
Operating loss {9,084) (538) {124) m (123) (9,870) - (9,870)
Finance cost — External 7 - - - - 7 - 7
— Other segments 618 - -~ 128 - 746 (746) -
Finonce income — External (218) - - - - (218) - (218)
— Other segments (303) - (216) (153) (74) (746) 746 -
Share of profit of investments accounted for
using the equity method 15 - - - - 15 - 15
(Loss)/profit before taxation (8,965) (538) (340) (26) (197)  {10,066) - (10,066)
Toxation 400 - Mm - (187) 212 - 212
(Loss)/profit for the year (8,565) (538) (341) (26) (384) (9,854) - (9,854)
Segment assels 48,573 1,072 6,066 3,433 4,655 63,799 - 63,799
Less intercompany receivables {16,691 (55) {5901)  {3,640) (3,799 (30,086 - (30,086)
Add tax assets 2,230 - - (65) 45 2,210 - 2,210
Total assets 34,112 1,017 165 (272) 901 35,923 - 35923
Segmeni liabilities 17145 2,080 4,743 4,148 6,702 34,818 - 34818
less infercompany poyables {12,769) 12,017)  [4,655) (4,066} (6,578) (30,085) - (30,085)
Add tax liabilities 326 - - - - 326 - 326
Total liabilities 4,702 63 88 82 124 5,059 - 5,059
Other segment items '
Capital expenditure 1,619 29 - - - 1,648 -~ 1,648
Depreciation 2,767 12 23 7 12 2,821 - 2,821
Net foreign exchange on intercompany :
loans 114 - - - - 14 - 14
Amortisation of infangible assets 992 - - - - 992 - 992
Share-based payment (87} - - - - (87} - (87)

All ransactions between Group companies are on normal commercial terms.
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Year ended 31 March 2017

Total
reporioble
UK USA Spain licly  Rest of Euiope segments Iniro-Group Group
£'000 £'000 £'000 €000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Revenue — External 37720 3,519 1,071 1,622 3,488 47420 - 47420
— Other segments 6,956 - - - - 6956 6.956) -
Operating loss (11,864 (323) 2,037 534 428 (9,188) - (9,188)
Finance cost — Exlernal 5 - - - - 5 - 5
— Other segments 594 - - - ~ 504 {594) -
Finance income — External (324) - {2) - ~ [326) - (326)
- Other segments (175) - {205) (145) (69) (594) 594 -
{Loss)/profit before taxation (11,764) (323) 1,830 389 359 (9,509) - (9,509)
Toxation 100 (2) (5) {218) (32) (157) - (157)
(Loss)/profit for the year (11,664) {325) 1,825 171 327 (9,6606) - (9,666)
Segment ossets 47277 1,605 6,137 3,858 5950 64,827 - 64827
Less intercompany receivables (17027) [65) (5,884) (3,280) (3.495) (29,751} - {29.751)
Add tox assels 2,024 - - - - 2,024 - 2,024
Total assets 32,274 1,540 253 578 2,455 37100 - 37100
Segment libilities 17966 2,189 4,552 4,544 7,803 37054 {29922) 7132
less intercompany payables {12,329) [2,126)  [4,396) [4,296) [6,775) (29922} 29922 -
Add tox liabilities 94 - - 212 - 306 - 306
Total liabilities 5,731 63 156 460 1,028 7438 - 7438
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 1,834 20 9l 37 ~ 1982 - 1082
Depreciation 2,810 20 54 149 3 3,036 - 3,036
Net foreign exchange on infercompany
loans 410 - - - ~ 410 - 410
Amortisalion of intangible assets 728 - - 80 8 816 - 816
Impoirment of goodwill - - - - ~ - - -
Share-based payment 4 - - - ~ 94 - 94
All ransactions between Group companies are on normal commercial terms.
3. NET FINANCE EXPENSE
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Finance costs:
Interest expense on bank borrowings (218) {326) - -
Interest expense on intercompany borrowings - - (216) [205)
(218) {326) (216) (205)
Finance income:
Bank interest 7 5 - -
Interest income on intercompany loans - - 175 175
7 5 175 175
Net finance expense (2n) (321) (41) (30}
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

4. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
: £000 £000 £000 £000
The following items have been included in arriving at loss before faxation:
Staff costs [note 24) 8994 10,587 1,443 1,452
Inventories:
- Cost of inveniories recognised as an expense [included in cost of sales) 17,252 23,339 - -
- Stock provision (44) [646) - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:
= Owned assets 2,821 3,036 - -
{Loss)/profit on disposal of fixed assets 9) 1,439 - 926
Other operating lease rentals payable:
— Plant and machinery 88 Q2 - -
= Property 717 719 - -
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 14 86 - -
Research and development expenditure 994 1,154 - -
Foreign exchange [gains)/losses:
Impairment of trade receivables 432 486 - -
Share-bosed poyment (credit) /charge (87) 110 202 76
Other operaling expenses/{incomel:
— Foreign exchange on trading transaciions 221 [292) - -
- Net impact of foreign exchange on intercompany loans (114) (410) - -
~ Amortisation of intongible ossets — brands and customer lists 314 344 - -
Group . Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

£000 £000 £1000 £000
Exceptional items comprise:
- Restructuring costs 1,823 3,889 536 761
— Refinancing 70 944 - 191
= Profit on disposal of property - (1,530} - (926)
- Costs of EGM and mandatory offer 399 - 381 -
- Impairment of investment - - 972 5,775

2,292 3,303

1,889 5,801

The exceptional items totalling £2,292,000 (2017: £3,303,000) include restructuring costs relating to redundancy costs and professional
fees, relating 1o the ongoing reorganisation in the UK, ond additionally in the prior year the cosis of running the Margate site. In addition,
there are cosfs relating to the 2017 equity issue and bank refinancing, plus fees relating to the EGM and the Phoenix mandatory offer

for shares. ,

The Company’s exceptional items include £972,000 (2017: £5,775,000) in respect of impairment charges against investments in the
Spanish, Italian and German subsidiaries following the restructuring of the senior manogement team and the associated forecasts.
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Services provided by the Company’s auditors and network firms

During the yeor, the Group lincluding its overseos subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Company’s auditors and network

firms as detailed below:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Parent Company and
consolidated accounts 55 50 10 10
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for other services:
— The auditing of accounts of the Company's subsidiaries 44 62 - -
- Auditrelated assurance services 5 5. - -
- Other odvisory work 95 - -
104 212 10 10

In the current financial year the level of non-audit fees was within the 1:1 ratio to audit fees as per Audit Committee policy. Other advisory

work relates to the raising of equity in the year to 31 March 2017,

5. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/CHARGE
Analysis of tax (credit]/charge in the year

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current tax
- UK taxation - - - -
Adjusiments in respect of prior years - - - -
- Overseas taxation ' - 212 - _
Adjustments in respect of prior years (212) 45 - -
[212) 257 = -
Deferred tax [note 20)
= Current year - (199) - (94)
- Overseas foxation - _ - _
- Adjustments in respeci of prior years - - - -
— Effect of tox rate change on opening balance - 99 - (6)
- (100) - (100)
Total tax [credit)/charge to the loss before tax 212) 157 - {100}
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

5. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/CHARGE continued
The tox for the year differs to the stondard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%. Any differences are explained below:

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

£000 £000 £000 £1000
Loss before taxation - (10,066) (2,509 {1,838) 15.725)
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by rate of

Corporation fax in UK of 19% (2017. 20%) {1,913) {1,202) {349) (1,145)

Effects of:
Adjusiments lo tax in respect of prior years (212) 45 - -
Permanent differences (19) 83 205 868
Difference on overseas rates of tox (131) (110} - -
Deferred fax not recognised 2,063 1942 144 183
Remeasurement of - deferred tax
- Change in UK tax rate to 17% {2017 17%) - Q9 - (6) -
Total taxation (212) 157 - (100)

The Company's profits for this accounting year are toxed at an effective rate of 19%. The UK corporation tax rate is due to decrease further
to 17% on 1 April 2020.

UK deferred tax balances have been restated in these accounts and carried forward at a rate of 17%, being the current rate substantively
enacted for periods from 1 April 2020 onwards.

Unrecognised deferred tox relates to UK and overseas subsidiaries and is not recognised due the Directors taking the view that it would be
incpEro riate to recognise further deferred tax assets relating o losses until taxable profits are being delivered by the Group. More detail
can be tound in note 20.

6. DIVIDENDS
No interim or final dividends were paid in relation 1o the year ended 31 March 2017 and no interim dividend has been paid in relation to
the year ended 31 March 2018. The Direclors are not proposing a final dividend in respect of the finoncial year ended 31 March 2018,

7. LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the yeor, excluding those held in the employee share trust {note 22) which are treated as cancelled.

For diluted loss per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares that have satisfied the appropriate performance criteria at 31 March 2018. For the year ended 31 March 2018, there was
no difference in the weighted average number of shares used for basic ond diluted net loss per ordinary because their inclusion would be
anti-dilutive.
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Reconciliations of the loss and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out below.

2018 2017
Weighted Weighted
average overage
{Loss)/ number of Per-share {loss)/ number of Pershore
earnings shares amount earnings shares amount

£°000 ‘000s pence £000 ‘000s pence
Reported
Basic loss per share
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (9,854) 97,288 {10.13) (9.666) 76,384 [12.65)
Effect of dilutive securities
Options - - - - - -
Diluted loss per share (9,854) 97,288 (10.13)  (9.666) 76,384 (12.65)
Underlying
Loss altribulable lo ordinary shareholders (9.854) 97288 (10.13) (Q.666) 76,384 (12.65)
Amorlisation of intangibles 254 - 0.26 275 - 0.36
Restructuring costs 1,477 - 1.52 3,111 - 4.07
Extraordinary General Meeting and mandatory offer 323 - 0.33 - - -
Refinancing * 57 - 0.06 755 - 099
Profit on disposal of property - - - (1,223 - (1.6)
Net foreign exchange translation adjusiments 93) - {0.10} (328) - 0.43)
Underlying basic loss/EPS (7,836} 97,288 (8.05) (7.076) 76,384 [9.26)
Underlying diluted loss/EPS (7.836) 97,288 (8.05) [7076) 76,384 (9.26)

The above numbers used to calculate the EPS for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 have been tox effected at the rotes

of 19% and 20% respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

8. GOODWILL

Group £000
Cost

At 1 April 2017 13,045
Exchange adjustments 10
At 31 March 2018 13,055
Aggregate impairment

Al ) April 2017 8,491
Charge for the year -
Exchange adjusiments -
At 31 March 2018 8,491
Net book amount at 31 March 2018 4,564
Cost

A1 1 April 2016 13,007
Exchange adjusimenls 38
At 31 March 2017 13,045
Aggregate impairment

Al 1 April 2016 8,491
. Charge for the year -
Exchange adjustments -
At 31 March 2017 8,491
Net book amount at 31 March 2017 4,554
Net book amount at 31 March 2016 4,516

The Company has no goodwill.

The goodwill has been dllocated to CGUs and a summary of carrying amounts of goodwill by geogrophical segment [representing CGUs|

at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 is as follows:

USA Fronce Germeny Total
Group £000 £000 €000 £000
At 31 March 2018 9 365 198 4,564
At 31 March 2017 10 358 194 4,554

Goodwill allocoted to the above CGUs of the Group has been measured based on benefits each geographical segment is expected to

gain from the business combination.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Management reviews the business performance based on geography. Budgeted revenue was based on expected levels of activity given
resulis fo date, together with expected economic and market conditions. Budgeted operating profit was calculated bosed upon
management's expectation of operating costs appropriate to the business as reflected in the New Business Plon.

The relative risk-adjusted (or ‘beta’) discount rate applied reflects the risk inherent in hobby-based product companies. In determining this
discount rate, management has applied an adjustment for risk of such companies in the indusiry on average, determined using the betas

of comparable hobby-based product companies. The forecasts are based on approved budgets for the year ending 31 March 2019/
three-year business plan for the year ending 31 March 2021. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extropo%ored using an eslimated
2% year-on-year growth rate. The cash flows were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 109% (2017 13%) which management

believes is oppropriate for all terriiories.
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The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations for the year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows:

UK
UK {Airfix & .
Group {Corgi) Humbrof) France Spain Italy Germany
Gross margin' 61.1% 63.3% 62.2% n/a n/a 56.9%
Growth rate to perpetuity? 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% n/a n/a 2.0%
}. Averoge of the varioble yearly gross margins used over the period 2018-19 1o 2022-23.
2. Weighied average growth rate used to extrapolcte cash flows beyond the budget period.
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations for the year ended 31 March 2017 are os follows:
K
UK (Airix &
Group (Corgil Humbrol] France Spain taly Germany
EBITDA! 38.9% 35.6%! 37.4%2 n/a n/a 40.7%
Growth rate to perpetuity? 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% n/a n/a 1.0%

1. Budgeted contribution: Corgi and Airfix/Humbrol.
2. Budgeted EBITDA: france and Germany.
3. Weighied overcge growth roie used to extrapolcte cash flows beyond the budget period.

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within the operaling segments.

For the UK CGU, the recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded carrying value by £14.7 million. A reduction of the
average gross margin lo respectively 56.0% for Corgi and 51.7% for Airfix/Humbrol, or a rise in discount rate to respectively 16.6% for

Corgi and 51.9% for Airfix/Humbrol, would remove the remaining headroom.

For the France CGU, the recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded carrying value by £11.7 million. A reduction of the
overage gross margin to 13.5%, or a rise in discount rate to 220.4%, would remove the remaining headroom.

For the Germany CGU, the recoverable amount calculated based on volue in use exceeded carrying value by £9.2 million. A reduction of
the average gross margin to 15.6%, or a rise in discount rate to 290.7%, would remove the remaining headroom.

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Comguter

Biond ncmes  Customer lists software Total
Group £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Intangible assets
Cost
At 1 April 2017 4914 1,415 2,555 8,884
Additions - - 146 146
Al 31 March 2018 4914 1,415 2,701 9,030
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 Apiil 2017 2,526 1,333 811 4,670
Charge for the year 232 82 678 992
At 31 March 2018 2,758 1,415 1,489 5,662
Net book amount at 31 March 2018 2,156 - 1,212 3,368
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS conlinued

Computer

Biand names  Customer lists softwacre Totol
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Intangible assets
Cost
Al April 2016 4,813 1,405 2,329 8,547
Additions - - 226 226
Exchange adjusiments 101 10 - 1
At 31 March 2017 4914 1,415 2,555 8,884
Accumulated amortisation
ALl April 2016 2,203 1,228 339 3,770
Charge for the yeor : 249 95 472 816
Exchange adjusiments 74 10 - 84
At 31 March 2017 - 2,526 1,333 81 4,670
Net book amount at 31 March 2017 2,388 82 1,744 4,214
All amortisation charges in the year have been charged in other operating expenses. The Company held no intangible assets.
10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT "

. lent and Motor Tools and
equipment vehicles moulds Tota)

Group £000 £000 £0000 £1000
Cost
Al 1 April 2017 4,882 198 61,672 66,752
Exchange adjustments . {14) (4) - (18)
Additions at cost 57 - 1,591 1,648
Disposals {3,358) (160) m (3,529)
At 31 March 2018 1,567 34 63,252 64,853
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2017 4,291 196 56,582 61,069
Exchange adjustments (8) (2) - (10)
Charge for the year 237 - 2,584 2,821
Disposals {3,345) (160) 1y (3,516)
At 31 March 2018 1,175 34 59,155 60,364
Net book amount at 31 March 2018 392 - 4,097 4,489

Depreciation is charged in the Group's Stalement of Comprehensive Income within administrative expenses.
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Plont and Motor Tools and
equipment vehicles moulcs Total
Group £000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost
At | April 2016 6,806 194 58,801 65,801
Exchange adjustmenis Si 4 1,172 1,227
Additions at cost 57 - 1,699 1,756
Disposals (2,032) - - (2,032)
At 31 Morch 2017 4,882 198 61,672 66,752
Accumulated depreciation
Al April 2016 5,536 194 52879 58,609
Exchange adjusiments 34 | 1,005 1,040
Charge for the year 337 | 2,698 3,036
Disposals (1,616) - - (1,616)
At 31 March 2017 4,291 196 56,582 61,069
Net book amount at 31 March 2017 591 2 5,090 5683
Net book amount at 31 March 2016 1,270 - 5922 7192
The Company does not hold any cssets.
11. INVESTMENTS
Group
The movements in the net book value of interests in subsidiary undertakings are as follows: s
subsidiory
undertckings
ot vahiation
£000
ALl Aprit 2017 -
Acquisilion of 49% of LCD Enterprises 1,600
Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method 15
At 31 March 2018 1,615
Company
The movements in the net book value of interests in subsidiary underiakings are as follows: hreresis in S
subsidicry subsidicry
undertokings  undertakings
at valuation ot cost Total
£000 £000 £000
Al ) April 2017 17,823 4834 22657
Acquisition of 49% of LCD Enterprises 1,600 - 1,600
Share of profit of invesiments accounted for using the equity methed 15 - 15
Impairment of invesiment in subsidiary undertokings (972) - (972)
At 31 March 2018 18,466 4,834 23,300
Al 1 April 2016 23,564 4,834 28,398
Capital contribution relating to share-based payment 34 - 34
Net increase in loans to subsidiary undertoking - - -
Impairment of investment in subsidiory undertakings (5.775) - (5.775)
At 31 March 2017 17,823 4834 22657

Interest was charged on loans to subsidiary undertokings at Sterling three-month Libor + 3.6%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11. INVESTMENTS continued
loans are unsecured and exceed five years’ malurity.

The impairment of investments in the year relates to a write-down to the investments held in ltaly, Germany and Spain. The impgairment testin
P in the y e5 10 0 _ y y ond Sp p 9
performed is on the same basis as the goodwill impairment tests disclosed in note 8.

Group subsidiary undertakings

Detoir; of the subsidiaries of the Group are set out below. Horby Hobbies Limited is engaged in the development, design, sourcing and
distribution of models. Hornby America Inc., Hornby lalia s.r.l., Hornby France S.A S, Horn%y Espoiia S.A. and Hornby Deutschlond GmbH
are distributors of models. Hornby Industries Limited ond H&M (Systems| Limited are dormant companies. All subsidiaries are held directly by
Hornby PLC.

Proporiion of nominal value
of issued shares held

Description of sheres

Country of incorporation, registiation ond business held Group%  Compony %
Hornby Hobbies Limited Discovery Park, Sandwich, Kent CT13 9FF, UK Ordinary shares 100 100
Hornby America Inc. 3900 Industry Dr E, Fife, WA 98424, USA Ordinary shares 100 100
Hornby Espoiia S.A. C/Federico Chueca, S/N, E28806 ALCALA DE HENARES, Spain  Ordinary shares 100 100
Homby ltalia s.r.. Viale dei Caduti, 52/A6 25030 Castel Mella (Brescia), lialy Ordinary shores 100 100
Hornby France S.A.S. 31 Bis rue des longs Pres, 92100 Boulogne, Billancourt, France Ordinary shores 100 100
Hornby Deutschland GmbH Oeslaver Strasse 36, 96472, Rodental, Germany Ordinary shares 100 . 100
Hornby Industries Limited Discovery Park, Sandwich, Kent CT13 9FF, UK Ordinary shares 100 100
H&M (Systems) Limited Discovery Park, Sandwich, Kent CT13 9FF, UK Ordinary shares 100 100

The Group also holds o direct investment in LCO Enterprises Limited, holding 49% of ordinary shares. This investment is accounted for as an
associate and is a frading company registered af Unit 6, 119 Ystrad Road, Florestfach, Swansea, Wales, SAS 4J8.

12. INVENTORIES

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000

Finished goods 10,030 2,680 - -
10,030 9,680 - -

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of invenlory are as follows: 2018 2017
£000 £000

At 1 April 796 1,442
Provision for inventory impairment 505 (234)
Inventory writien-off during the year (340} (423)
Exchange adjustments (3) H
At 31 March 958 796
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

£000 £°000 £000 £000
Current:
Trade receivables 5,931 8,884 - -
less: provision for impairment of receivables (1,458) (1,026} - -
Trade receivables - net 4,473 7858 - -
Other receivables 358 803 - -
Prepayments 1,118 585 9 48

Amounis owed by subsidiary undertaking

33,520 24,061

5949 Q246 33,529 24,09

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the Group's customer base being large and unrelated and

therefore the provision for receivables impairments is deemed adequate.

Gross trade receivables can be analysed os follows:

2018 2017
£'000 £000
Fully performing 3,131 4,823
Past due 1,342 3,035
Fully impaired 1,458 1,026
Trade receivables © 5,931 8,884

As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of £1,342,000 (2017 £3,035,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate lo o number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2018 2017

£'000 €000

1-120 doys 1,077 2,257
>120 doys 265 778
1,342 3,035

As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of £1,458,000 (2017: £1,026,000) were impaired and provided for in full.

Significant financial difficulties of the customer, Cfrobcbility that the customer will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation are considered

indications that the trade receivable is impaired.

The ageing of these receivables, based on due date, is as follows:

2018 2017

£1000 £000

1-120 days 356 233
>120 days 1,102 793
1,458 1,026
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Notes fo the Financial Statements confinued

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

Movemenis on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2018 2017

£000 £000
ALT Apr 1,026 540
Provision for receivables impairment 473 450
Receivables written-off during the year as uncollectible (31) [53)
Exchange adjusiments (10) 89
At 31 March 1,458 1,026

The charge relating to the movement in provision has been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The carrying amounts of the Group and Company trade and other receivables, except prepayments and amounts owed by subsidiary

undertckings, are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Sterling intercompany - - 33,520 24,061
Sterling 3,764 5,440 - -
Euro 934 2,628 - ~
US Dollar 133 593 - -
HK Dollar - - - -
4,831 8,661 33,520 24,061
14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 3,878 1,580 4 6
15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £1000
Current:
Trade payables 2,245 3,212 - -
Other taxes and social security 226 677 12 4
Other payables 51 655 - -
Accruals 1,790 2,120 146 23
4,312 6,664 158 27
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16. PROVISIONS
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Sales returns
Al 1 Aprit 196 446 - -
Chorge lo Stotemeni of Comprehensive Income 636 81 - ~
Utilised in the yeor (658) (1,061 - ~
At 31 March 174 196 - ~
Provision is made for future sales returns based on historical trends. The provision is expected 1o be utilised within one year trom the balance
sheet dofe.
17. CURRENT TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
Current tax assets
UK corporation tax recoverable - 50 - 50
Overseas corporation tax recoverable - - - -
- 50 - 50
Current tax liabilities
UK corporation tax liability - - - -
Overseas corporation tax liability - 212 - -
- 212 - ~
18. BORROWINGS
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Secured borrowing at omortised cost
Bonk overdrafts - 8?2 - -
Loan from subsidiary undertakings - - 5,849 5,518
- 82 5,849 5518
Total borrowings
Amount due for settlement within twelve months - 82 - ~
Amount due for settlement after twelve months - - 5,849 5,518
- 82 5,849 5,518

The Company borrowings are denominated in Sterling. All infercompany borrowings are formalised by way of loan agreements. The loans
can be repaid ot any lime; however, the Company has received confirmation from its subsidiary that they will not require payment within the

next twelve months.
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Notes to the Financial Statements confinued

18. BORROWINGS continued
Andlysis of borrowings by currency:

Sterling Euros Total

Group £000 £000 £000
31 March 2018

Bank overdrafts - - -
31 March 2017

Bank overdrofts 82 - 82

82 - 82

The principal features of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

At 31 March 2018, the Group had a revolving credit facility of £6,000,000 expiring December 2019 and the future interest rates on this
facility are Libor +3.5%.

The average effective interest rale on bank overdrafts in place during the year to 31 March 2018 approximated 3.95% (2017: 3.95%) per
annum and is determined based on 3.5% {2017: 3.5%) above Ihree-moan Libor.

Net cash at bank and bank overdrafts of £3,878,000 (2017: £1,498,000) are with financial institutions with a credit rating of A2 per
Moody's rating agency.

Undrawn borrowing facilities
Al 31 March 2018, the Group had ovailoble £6,000,000 {2017: £7.668,000) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been met.

Change in facilities
On 5 June 2018, the Group signed a £12 million Asset Based tending facility with PNC Credit Limited {ending June 2023) and o £6 million
loan facility with Phoenix Asset Management Partners Limited |initial term of three years and then rolling cnnuoﬁy}.

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group's policies and strategies in relation to risk and financial instruments are detailed in note 1.

Assets Liabilities
2018 20i7 2018 2017
Group £000 £000 £/000 £000
Carrying values of derivative financial instruments
Forward foreign currency coniracts — cash flow hedges - 120 (423) (190)

The hedged forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at various dates during the next twelve months.
Gains and losses recognised in reserves on forward foreign exchange contracts as of 31 March 2018 are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income first in the period or periods during which the hedged forecast fransaction affects the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, which is within twelve months from the balonce sheet date.

At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the gross value of forward currency contracts was as follows:

2018 2017
‘000 000
US Dollar 13916 12,718

The net fair value for the forward foreign currency contracts is a licbility of £423,000 (2017: £70,000 liability) of which £423,000 net
liobility (2017: £70,000 ret liability} represents an effective hedge at 31 March 2018 and has therefore been debited to Other
Comprehensive Income in accordance with IAS 39.

In accordance with I1AS 39, the Group has reviewed all contracts for embedded derivatives that are required to be separately accounted for
if they do not meet certain requirements sel out in the standard. No embedded derivatives have been identified.

The Company has no derivative financial instruments.
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Fair values of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

For the Group and the Company, as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, there is no difference between the carrying amount and fair
valve of eochf the following classes of financiol assets and licbilities, principally due to their short moturity: frade and other receivables,
cash at bank and in hand, trade and other payables and current borrowings. Bank deposits atiract interest within 1.0% of the ruling market
rate. Thefre is no significant difference between the fair value and carrying amount of non-current borrowings as the impact of discounting is
not signiticant.

Maturity of financial liabilities

Accounts
payable 2018
and accruals Total
£/000s £000
Less than one year 4,312 4,312
Between one and two years - -
Between two and five years - -
More than five years - -
4,312 4,312
2018 2017
Intercompany  Intercompany
’ debt debi
Company £000 £000
More than five years [note 18) 5,849 5,518

Hierarchy of financial instruments
The following tables present the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,
The table analyses financial insiruments carried at fair valve, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

* Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1).

* Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thot are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {that is, as prices)
or indireclly [that is, derived from prices] (Level 2). '

* Inputs for the asset or liability thot ore not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

There were no transfers or reclassifications between levels within the year. level 2 hedging derivatives comprise forward foreign exchange
contracts and have been fair valued using forward exchange rates that are quoted in an aclive market. The effects of discounting are
generally insignificant for Level 2 derivatives.

The fair volue of the following financial ossets and liabilities opproximate their carrying amount: Trade and other receivables, other current
financial assets, cash and cash equivalents {excluding bank overdrafts), trade ond other payables.

Hornby PLC Annual Recort and Azcounts 2018

49

JL.[o%EL
J193LVHLS M3IIANY3AO

FONVNIIA0O

SLN3IWiILV1S
TVIONVNIL



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Financial instruments

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totdl
£000 £1000 £000 £000
Assets
Derivatives used for hedging - - - -
Total assets as at 31 March 2018 - - - -
Liabilities
Derivatives used for hedging - {423) - [423)
Total liabilities at 31 March 2018 - (423) - (423)
Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Tolel
£000 £000 £000 £0000
Assets
Derivatives used for hedging - 120 - 120
Total assets as at 31 March 2017 - 120 - 120
Liabilities
Derivatives used for hedging - (190) - {190)
Total liabilities ot 31 March 2017 - (190) - (190)

Interest rate sensitivity
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as the Grour borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The exposure to these
borrowings varies during the year due to the seasonal nature of cash flows relating io sales.

In order to measure risk, floating rate borrowings and the expected interest costs are forecast on @ monthly basis and compared to budget
using management's expeclations of a reasonably possible change in interest rates. .

The effect on both income and equity based on exposure to borrowings at the balance sheet date for a 1% increase in interest rates is
£3,000 [2017: £41,000) before tax. A 1% fall in interest rates gives the same but opposite effect. 1% is considered an appropriate
benchmark given the minimum level of movement in the UK interest rate over recent years and expectation over the next financial year given
the minimum level of movement in the UK inferest rate over recent years and expeciation over the next financial year.

Foreign currency sensitivity in respect of financial instruments

The Group is primarily exposed to ﬁucruotions in US Dollars and the Euro. The following table details how the Group's income and equity
would increase on a before-tox basis, given a 10% revaluation in the respeciive currencies against Sterling and, in accordance with IFRS 7,
all other variables remaining constant. A 10% devaluation in the value of Sterling would have the opposite effect. The 10% chonge represents
a reasonably possible change in the specified foreign exchange rates in relation to Sterling.

Comprehensive income and
equity sensitivity

2018 2017

£000 £000

US Dollars 1,356 1,308
Euros 964 1,163
2,320 2,471

Capital risk management
The Group's objeclives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stokeholders ond to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of copital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends peid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing rolio. The ratio is calculoted os net (cosh)/debt divided by tolal capifol. Net debt is
calculated os total borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet less cash and cash equivolents. Total copital is calculated as

‘equity’ as shown in the balonce sheet plus net debt.

2018 2017
£/000 £000
Total borrowings [note 18) - 82
less:
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 14) (3,878) {1,580}
Net (cash)/debt (3,878) (1,498)
Total equity 30,864 29,663
Total capital 26986 28,165
Gearing {14%) (5%)
20. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liobility method.
The movement on the deferred tax account is as shown below:
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £/000 £'000
At 1 April (1,880) (1,780 - 100
Charge 1o Statement of Comprehensive Income [note 5)
- origination and reversal of temporary differences - (100} - (100
At 31 March (1,880) (1,880 - -

Deferred tox assets have been recognised in respect of certain UK timing differences only. Temporary differences giving rise to deferred tox
ossefs hove been recognised in the UK where it is probable that those assets will be recovered.

No deferred tax is provided for tax liabiliies which would arise on the distribution of profits retained by overseas subsidiaries because there

is currently no infention that such profits will be remitted.

The movemenis in deferred tox assets and liabilities during the year are shown below.

Deferred tax assets ond liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset.

Acquisition

Revaluotion inicngibles
Deferred tax liabilities £000 £000
At 1 April 2017 - 94
Charge to Statement of Comprehensive Income - 56
At 31 March 2018 - 150
A1 April 2016 100 111
Credit to Statement of Comprehensive Income (100) (17)
At 31 March 2017 - Q4
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

20. DEFERRED TAX continued

Group Company
Acquisition Shortterm
iniangibles Other Total  incentive plon Total
Deferred tox assets £000 £000 £°000 £000 £000
Al April 2017 - (1,974) (1,974) - -
Credit to Statement of Comprehensive Income - [56) (56) - -
At 31 March 2018 - {2,030) (2,030} - -
At 1 April 2016 - (1991) (1,991) - -
Charge to Statement of Comprehensive Income - 17 17 - -
At 31 March 2017 - (1,974) (1,974) - -
Net deferred tax liability/lassef]
At 31 March 2018 150 {2,030) {1,880} - -
At 31 March 2017 Q4 (1,974) (1,880] - -
2018 2017
Not Not
Recognised gnised Recognised recognised
Group £000 £000 £000 £'000
Deferred tax comprises:
Depreciation in excess of capifal allowances (1,891) (514) {1,901) i71)
Other temporary differences — UK n (2,539) 21 11,510)
Other temporary differences — overseas - 2,797) - (2,537)
Deferred tax asset (1,880) (5,850)  (1,880) (4,118)
The UK deferred tax asset not recognised of £3,053,000 primarily relates to unrecognised losses in Homby Hobbies Limited of
£13,746,000 (potential deferred tox asset of £2,337,000) and Homby PLC of £1,190,000 (pofential deferred tox asset of £202,000).
It also relates to a potential deferred tax asset in respect of ccceleroteJ capital allowances of £514,000.
The deferred tax asset not recognised in respect of overseas losses carried forward of £2,797,000 relales o losses carried forward of
£1,569,000 in respect of Hornby Espaiic SA (potential deferred tox asset of £392,000), £2,351,000 in respect of Hornby France SAS
{potential deferred tox asset of £784,000), £1,850,000 in respect of Horby Deutschland GmbH {potential deferred tax asset of
£590,000), £3,734,000 in respect of Homby lialia srl [potential deferred tox asset of £896,000) and £538,000 in respect of Hornby
America Inc [potential deferred tox asset of £135,000).
fl\lo deferred tax has been recognised on the losses incurred as there is not a high degree of cerlainly that they will be recovered in the
uture.
2018 2017
Not Not
. Recognised gnised Recognised recognised
Company £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Deferred tax comprises:
Accelerated copital allowances - - - -
Oither timing differences - (202} - (108}
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (202) - (108)

These unrecognised assets relate fo tax losses carried forword in Homby PLC.
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21. SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
Allotted, issued and fully paid:

2018 2017
Ordinary shares of 1p each Number of shares £000 Number of shores £000
At 1 April 84,583,204 846 54 953,574 550
Issue of ordinary shares 40,677,968 407 29,629,630 206
At 31 March 125,261,172 1,253 84,583,204 846

On 7 December 2017, the Company issued 40,677968 ordinary 1 pence shares for 29.5 pence per share, for net proceeds totalling
£12,000,000. At 31 March 2018 there were no options granted uncﬁ:-r the Company's share option schemes which remained outsionding.

22, SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS ('PSP’)
Hornby PLC operates one share-based poyment plan — the Performance Share Plan {'PSP).

Performance Share Plan
The Group operales the Performance Share Plan ['PSP’) for Executive Directors and senior executives. Awards under the scheme are gronted
in the form of a nil-priced option and are salisfied using marketpurchased shares.

PSP awards outstanding only vest if performance conditions are met. Awards granted under the PSP must be exercised within one year of the
relevant oward vesting date.

On 23 June 2017 Phoenix UK Fund Limited put forward o mandatory unconditional cash offer for the Hornby shares not already held by
members of the Phoenix Concert Party. As part of the rules of the PSP scheme, this cutomatically coused the 2016-17 PSP awards to vest.
Following on trom the change of ownership and due 1o the subsequent changes 1o the Board no PSP awards have been made in 2018.
All the remaining PSP awards have now either vested as a result of the iakeover offer or have lapsed.

There are no owards outsianding ot 31 March 2018.

All plans are subject to continued employment. To the extent that such shares in the above plans are awarded to employees below fair value,
a cﬁorge coleulated in accordance with IFRS 2 *Share-based payment' is included within other operaling expenses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. This credit for the Group amounts to £95,000, of which £87,000 has been taken 1o reserves and £9,000 to
accrugls, representing the corresponding credit of National Insurance, ond the chorge for the Company amounted to £202,000 in the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: £110,000 charge for the Group and the charge for the Company amounted to £16,000).

The following table summarises the key assumptions used for grants during the year:

2018 207

PSP! PSP
Fair value {p) - 11.13p
Options pricing model used - Block-Scholes (Stochaslic)
Share price at grant date [p) - 290p
Exercise price (p) - nil
Expected volatility (%) - 58.00%
Risk-free rate (%) - n/a
Expected option term (years) - 2.5
Expected dividends (per year, %) - 0%

1 Assumptions for TSR component only.

Assumptions on expected volatility and expected option term have been made on the basis of historical dota, wherever available, for the
period corresponding with the vesting period of the option. Best estimates have been used where historical data is not available in this
respect.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (‘PSP’) continued
At 31 March 2018, oulstanding awards to Directors under the Performance Share Plan were as follows:

Market price Al Apiil Awcrded lcpsed during  Vested duiing At 31 March

Aworddote  Vesting date ot oward dote 2017 during y=ar year yecr 2018

S Cooke Augl5  Augl8  1050p 190,476 ~ 190,476 - -
Dec-16 Mar19 290p 2,136,752 - 1914,209 222,543 -

R Canham Dec-16 Maor19 290p 170940 - 153,157 17.803 -
D Mulligan Dec-16 Mar19 290p 598,290 - 535978 62,312 -

For the 2015 awards, the outstanding awards lapsed during the yeor.

For the 2016 owards, the award is subject to a TSR condition which is measured over a period of three financial years from 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2019. For the TSR condition, 25% of the award will vest if Homby's TSR is equal to 15% compound onnual growth each vear,
75% vesting for 25% compound annual growih each year, with full vesting for 35% compound annual growth each year, with a sliding scale
operating between these poinis. Additionally, for the award to vest, in the year ending 31 March 2019 operating cash flow has lo be
positive and profit before tax has to equal or exceed £1.5 million.

23. RESERVES
Capital redemption reserve
This reserve records the nominal value of shares repurchased by the Company.

Translation reserve
The translation reserve represents the foreign exchange movements arising trom the translation of financial statements in foreign currencies.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of changes in the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts that have not yet
occurred.

Other reserves
This reserve represents historic negative goodwill arising prior 1o the transition to IFRS.

24. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000
Staff costs for the year:
Wages and salaries 6,935 8,541 615 871
Share-based payments [note 22) ) (87) Q4 202 76
Social security costs 707 on 90 104
Other pension costs [note 25) 357 44?2 71 74
Redundancy and compensation for loss of office 1,082 599 388 327

8994 10,587 1,366 1,452

The redundancy costs form part of the restructuring costs in the year classified as exceptional items.

Average monthly number of people (including Executive Direclors) employed by the Group:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Number Number Number Number
Operations 61 60 - -
Sales, marketing and distribution 70 100 - -
Administration 32 30 3 3
163 190 3 3
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Key management compensation:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Salaries and shortterm employee benefits 1,423 1,688 720 917
Share-based payments (87) 110 202 76
Other pension costs 97 118 71 69
Redundancy and compensation for loss of office 683 24) 330 20

2,116 2,157 1,323 1,082

Key management comprise the individuals involved in mojor strategic decision-making and includes all Group and subsidiary Directors.

A detailed numerical analysis of Directors’ remuneration and share options, showing the highest paid Director and number of Directors
accruing benefits under money purchase pension schemes, is included in the Directors’ Report on page 15 and forms part of these financiol
statements.

25. PENSION COMMITMENTS
The Group operaies o defined conlribution pension scheme by way of a Stokeholder Group Personal Pension Plan set up through the Friends
Provident Insurance Group. :

Alexander Forbes International is appoinied as Independent Financial Adviser to work in ligison with the Group.
The level of contributions to the Group Personal Pension Plan for current members is fixed by the Group.

The Group pension cost for the year was £357,000 (2017: £442,000) representing the actual contributions payable in the year and certain

scheme administration costs. The Company pension cost for the year was £71,000 (2017: £74,000). No contributions were outstanding at
the year end of 31 March 2018.

26. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS 2018 2017
Group £000 £000

At 31 March capital commitments were:
Contracted for but not provided 921 412

The commitmenis relate to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The Company does not have any capital commiiments.

Contingent ligbilities

The Company and its subsidiary undertakings are, from time to time, parties to legal proceedings and claims, which arise in the ordinary
course of business. The Directors do not anticipate that the outcome of these proceedings and claims, either individually or in aggregate,
will have a maierial adverse effect upon the Group's financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The total of future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable property, plant and motor vehicle operating leases falling due are

as follows:

Land and buildings Other Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Not later than one yeor 681 657 87 82 768 739
Later than one year but not more than five years 1,175 1,238 80 123 1,255 1,362
More than five years 107 166 - - 107 166
' 1,963 2,061 167 205 2,130 2,267

In addition to the above, the distribution aclivities of the business are oulsourced Io a third party company, DS logistics. The inifial agreement
with DS Logistics was for five years to August 2019. This has recently been extended to August 2021. The costs under the contract are
opproximately £2.4 million o year (2017:£2.9 million).

28. CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED'FROM OPERATIONS

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

£000 £000 £000 £0000
loss before taxation (10,066) {9,509 (1,838) (5,725)
Interest payable 218 326 198 205
Interest receivable ) 7) (5) (175) (175}
Share of profit of associate (15) - (15} -
Amortisation of infangible assets 992 816 - -
Impairment of investment - - 972 5,775
Depreciation 2,821 3,036 - -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 9 (1,439 - (1,179)
Share-based payments credit (non-cash) . (87) Q4 (87) 60
Share-based payments (cash) 136 - 136 -
Decreose in provisions (21) (250} - -
{Increase)/decrease in inventories {490) 4,31} - -
Decrease in trade and other receivables 3,396 4,335 37 26
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (2,375) (1,624) 132 (67)
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (5,489) %1 {640) {1,080
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29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES '

Bharat Ahir was Managing Director of Homby Hobbies Asia and a Director of Hornby Hobbies timited, a subsidiary of Hormby PLC. :
280ne Limited, owned by Bharat Ahir, has provided ongoing support to manage product delivery, for which Homby Hobbies Limiled has
paid £271,000 (2017: £206,000) in relation o these services in the year. No payments remained outsionding to 280ne Limited as at

31 March 2018. Homby Hobbies Limited no longer uses these services.

lyndon Dovies joined the Group as CEO on 5 October 2017, Horby Hobbies Limited subsequently purchased £4,346 of stock from
Oxford Diecast Limited, a company which is wholly owned by LCD Enterprises Limited, a company which lyndon Davies owns a controlling
51% share in. Hornby PLC purchased o 49% stake in LCD Enlerprises Limited on 7 December 2017, lyndon Davies remains a Director of
Oxford Diecast Limited.

Phoenix Asset Managemeni Pariners, who own the majority shareholding in Homby PLC, have olso provided o funding facility to the Group
ofter the financial year end; please see note 30 below. .

There were no other contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries existing during or ot the end of the financial yeor in which o
Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was interested. There are no other related-party transactions.

The Company received management fees from subsidiaries of £1,493,000 (2017: £1,369,000), interest of £175,000 (2017: £175,000)
and dividends from subsidiaries of £nil (2017: £nil) and incurred interest of £216,000 (2017: £205,000) on infercompany borrowings.

30. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 June 2018, the Group entered info a £12 million Asset Based lending agreement with PNC Credit Limited for five years ending June
2023. In addition, Phoenix Asset Management Partners Limited, the majority shareholder, has provided on additional £6 million facility

io turther fund the luraround as part of the New Business Plan. Further delails are given in note 18.

No other significant events have occurred between the end of the reporting period and the date of signature of the Annual Report and Accounts.
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Shareholders’ Information Service

Hornby welcomes contact with its shareholders.
If you have questions or enquiries about the Group or its products, please contact:

K Gould

Chief Finance Officer
Hornby PLC

3rd Floor, The Gateway
Innovation Way
Discovery Park
Sondwicﬁ

Kent CT13 QFF
www.hornby.com
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